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About Us
Opportunity International Savings
and Loans Limited, (Opportunity
International) is a leading savings
and loans institution in Ghana.
Opportunity
International
is
at the forefront of delivering
transformational financial services
to help transform the lives of clients.
It was licensed by the Bank of
Ghana in June 2004. Opportunity
International Savings and Loans
limited is an implementing partner
of Opportunity International.
Since its inception, Opportunity
International has focused its key
activities on the marginalized, the
poor and those who are excluded
from mainstream banking. It
operates a business model that is
not only transformational, but also
profitable, sustainable and very fast
growing. It places a premium on
understanding the needs of its clients and their capacity. Opportunity International provides sound
financial education and support, using the individual approach to lending while promoting a savings
culture by offering innovative deposit products. It assists micro, small and medium size businesses
which form the backbone of most developing economies.
In 2009, the company diversified its credit portfolio to provide financial services to small holder farmers,
agro businesses and entrepreneurs in the agro value chain. To achieve this, Opportunity International
collaborates with various specialists in extension services delivery and off takers while leveraging on
technology to impact the lives of Ghanaian farmers through high yields resulting in high incomes.
In 2013, it introduced housing loans for the micro segment of its clients and empowerment loan
for the disabled in society. In 2014, it introduced institutional lending with the focus on support
Microfinance institutions to access credit and build their capacities.
Opportunity International has 44 outlets across the country. As of December 2016, the institution
had about 472,329 clients of which 53,958 are loan clients. Loan portfolio was GHS93.8 Million
and client deposit balances were GHS124.7 Million. This makes Opportunity International, one of
the largest savings and loans companies in the country. It has won several awards including Best in
Social Performance Management; Commitment to Professionalism in Microfinance Industry, Pillars of
Microfinance, the Best non-bank financial institution for the year 2013 awarded by Chartered Institute
of Marketing - Ghana, and Pan African Leadership Merit Award (PAMA) in 2015.
Opportunity International attributes its achievements to its embedded values coupled with the highly
trained, committed and skilled employees.
It makes significant investment in the training and professional development of its staff. Further it
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provides a friendly and an enabling
environment for its staff to thrive and
achieve both personal and Institutional
goals. Opportunity International derives
its sustainable competitive advantage
through its quality staff.
Opportunity values the commitment to
serve the economically disadvantaged
while exhibiting humility, respect, and
integrity to one another and to our
customers, and good stewardship of
our resources. The bottom line is that
lives are transformed for the better.
By leveraging on technology, Opportunity
International has been able to maximize
operational efficiencies. This has been
done in conjunction with an expansive
national branch network comprising
44 brick and mortar outlets, 4 Mobile
Vans, 19 Automated Teller Machines
(ATMs) and several Point of Sale (POS)
devices located across the length and
breadth of Ghana. E-zwich and MTN
Mobile Money, Money Gram, Western
Union, Samba, Top Connect, Transfast
and Ria Money Transfer are also part of
the remittance services which assists our clients and stakeholders in transferring money from one
location to the other. Recently it added Opportunity Mobile, a cell phone banking application for
Funds Transfer, Balance Enquiry, AirTime Top-Up, and Internal/local Remittances.  
Our value-based transformational banking, good customer service and unique product line sets us
apart from our competitors. Client satisfaction is at the centre of that we do.
Opportunity wishes to acknowledge the support of its clients and assure them of its continued
commitment; not only towards the growth of their businesses, but also their personal development
in the area of financial literacy. We aim to continue to design innovative products to meet the financial
needs of our clients.
Opportunity remains true to its commitment to building a strong savings culture in the communities
with financial literacy training.
Opportunity is also a member of Ghana Microfinance Network (GHAMFIN) and Ghana Association of
Savings and Loans Companies (GHASALC).
VISION
Our vision is a world in which all people have the opportunity to achieve a life free from poverty, with
dignity and purpose.
MISSION
By providing financial solutions and training, we empower people particularly those living in poverty
to transform their lives, their children’s futures and their communities.

04 Opportunity International Savings and loans Annual Report 2016

VALUES
•
Commitment
•
Humility
•
Respect
•
Integrity
•
Stewardship
•
Transformation
WHAT WE DO
With a deep appreciation of the banking needs of the under-privileged entrepreneur, Opportunity
makes available to our clients a range of products and services such as:
•
Channels of savings for the less privileged
•
Transformational loans for the less privileged
•
SME loans for business growth
•
Remittance services
•
Business training
•
Micro insurance
•
Mobile banking for rural outreach and penetration
•
E-banking products
OPENING DOORS TO TRANSFROM LIVES
Opportunity’s products and services are built upon our core values and are specifically tailored to
meet the needs of our clients.
OUR STAFF
Opportunity has well-trained and dedicated staff who uphold our values and express them through
the way they interact with our clients.
OUR BUSINESS PRIORITIES
•
Becoming a sustainable provider of financial services to micro, small and medium  
entrepreneurs in Ghana;
•
Becoming a champion of poverty alleviation via micro enterprise stimulation and wealth
creation among the less privileged.
•
Becoming a leader in the micro finance industry in Ghana and the African continent in terms
of client oriented products and services with high outreach, impact and sustainability.
THE OPPORTUNITY DIFFERENCE
Opportunity delights in the truth and gives God all the glory!
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Board Chairman’s Statement
Distinguished Shareholders,
On behalf of Opportunity International Savings and Loans
(OISL) Board, I present to you the annual report for 2016.
I use this opportunity to thank the executive management
of OISL for their dedicated efforts which resulted in the
strong financial results achieved.   I would like to thank
the board members for their dedication and leadership,
providing strategic guidance to the management team.
Capital Structure
In the year under review, shareholders stated capital
remained at GH¢18.64 million.  The total equity has grown
from GHS29.4 Million in the prior year to GHS33 Million
in 2016, as a result of the consistent profit retention at
OISL over the past years, with 2016 as no exception.
The capital adequacy ratio of 14.83%, is comfortably
above the regulatory requirement, and provides a strong
foundation for the company.
Governance
The Board is dedicated to ensuring effective corporate
governance and sound risk management practices
which are of fundamental importance in the industry. The
adherence to good corporate governance principles continues to be the basis of the company,
thereby helping the Board to fulfill their supervisory role.
The Board has been vigilant and responsive to the changing regulatory framework and laws, ensuring
that the company policies are aligned to the best practice in the financial services sector in Ghana.
The level of compliance with regulatory standards has been attested by the good reports received
from the Central Bank and other regulatory bodies.
Strategic Developments
The shareholders and the Board have undertaken a strategic review of the operations of the company,
the outcome of which was a decision in 2016 to seek new investors, to allow for the further growth
and expansion of the company. This process is ongoing and there is nothing on the horizon that can
be reported at the time of writing. In the meantime it remains business as usual, with the prospects
for the company in 2017 remaining good.
Outlook for the Year 2017
The year 2017 is a post-election year, with normal peace and stability continuing in Ghana. This
creates a positive environment for business, which the company is ready to embrace. As our clients
create the economic activity and growth in Ghana, the company will be able to support with a wide
range of financial services.
For Opportunity International Savings and Loans, the year 2017 will be a year of growth for digital
banking, enhancement to the cell phone banking application, linking the ATM network to the Ghana
national switch, all of which will offer clients new ways to access their banking needs. Loans and
deposit products will be core to the services the company will offer, uniquely tailored and providing

06 Opportunity International Savings and loans Annual Report 2016

the solutions that clients need.
I am very optimistic about the future of the Company. The goal of reaching over 1Million customers
in Ghana by 2020 is within sight.
Acknowledgement
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to thank our Shareholders and other Stakeholders for the
firm confidence and support given to the company over the years. I would also like to express my
sincere gratitude to the loyal employees at all levels for their contribution to the growth and business
performance for 2016.
I would also like to thank our loyal clients who have trusted Opportunity International Savings and
Loans with their savings, have come to the company for their banking needs and for their enthusiastic
support for the work we do across Ghana. We intend to remain close to all our clients and be a part
of their communities and families, helping them to build lives of dignity and purpose, reaching their
goals and aspirations.
Thank you.

……………………………
Frazer D. Hume
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Board of Directors
Frazer D. Hume, Board Chairman
Frazer D. Hume is an experienced Senior International Banking
Executive, with proven skills in Business Leadership, Banking
Operations and Risk Management. He is a confident and dynamic
business leader. He has over 30 years’ experience in a variety of roles
with Opportunity International, Barclays Bank Plc and International
Bank of Qatar. His last 20 years have been spent in the international
banking businesses in Africa, Middle East and Eastern Europe.
For a period of 17 years, before 1994, he gained experience in
a variety of roles which included customer facing branch banking
and regional head office operations in the UK as well as offshore
banking in Jersey, Channel Islands. From August 1994 - December 2005, Frazer played several roles
in Barclays Bank PLC.
From January 2006 to September 2008, Frazer worked at International Bank of Qatar, Q.S.C. DohaQatar as Head of Operations / Chief Operation Officer and then as Chief Risk Officer in ABSA Group
South Africa – Barclays Bank Mozambique from January 2009 – December 2010.
He is currently the board chairman, CEO and business leader of Opportunity Bank Serbia (OBS)
where he is primarily responsible for all aspects of risk, governance and control, as well as business
direction and performance.
Kwame Owusu-Boateng, Chief Executive Officer
Kwame has 16 years professional experience which covers
International Trade Finance, Banking Operations, Micro Finance,
and Executive Management.  He joined Opportunity International
Savings and Loans in 2006 from a private International Trade
Finance firm.  
Kwame joined Opportunity International as the first Branch
Operations Officer.   By dint of hard work and his level of
excellence, he was promoted through the positions of Branch
Operations Manager, Branch Manager, Regional Manager and
Chief Relationship Officer from 2009 to 2012. He was appointed
as acting CEO in 2012 and was confirmed by the Board as the
first local CEO of Opportunity International Savings and Loans in August 2013.  
His key strengths are in driving sales, Operations Management, and Effective Leadership. He has
the skill of building successful teams and energizing them to achieve great results and he is a people
person with the ability to spot and develop talents.
He is a graduate from the University of Cape Coast, Ghana with a BSC degree. Additionally he
graduated with an Executive MBA from Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology in
Kumasi, Ghana. Kwame has attended various executive programs, some of which includes The
Boulder Microfinance Training Program in Turin, a certificate program in Strategic Management in
Micro Finance from Harvard Business School, Boston, and has also attended the African Board
Fellowship program organized by Accion International.
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Maria Koramoa
Maria is a banker with expertise in microfinance and small and
medium enterprise (SME) development. She is the Country
Manager of Oikocredit Ghana.
Maria holds an MBA degree in International Banking and Finance
from the University of Birmingham (UK), B.A. (Hons) degree in
Economics & Sociology and a Diploma in Education from the
University of Cape Coast. She worked previously as Associate
Consultant in Microfinance/Trainer with Pentax Management
Consultancy Services, Accra, and also as Short-term Consultant
for SPEED Ghana.

Katéy Assem
Katéy Assem serves as an Executive Director of the Chicago
State University Foundation. Previously, he was Vice Chancellor
for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the North
Carolina Central University Foundation. Mr. Assem also served
as Vice President for Advancement and Research at Fort Valley
State University and as Chief Executive Officer of the FVSU
Foundation. Before joining FVSU, he was Chief Advancement
Officer and Executive Director of the Chicago State University
(CSU) Foundation.
Mr. Assem received his Bachelor of Science degree in Statistics
from the University of Ghana, Legon and Masters of Social Work
from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and holds a Certificate in Fundraising Management
(CFRM) from the Indiana University-Perdue University Fundraising School. He was also, a Fulbright
Scholar with the Council of International Programs in Chicago, Illinois.
He has over 28 years experience working in human services, juvenile justice and education where he
has designed Rites of Passage programs for community centers, churches and juvenile correctional
institutions. He has authored or co-authored numerous articles and two books on working with
children and families in foster care and adoption. He is currently completing a manuscript on Rites
of Passage.
Herve Sarteau
Herve Sarteau has held several positions including senior
partner with CarVal Investors, managing investments in a variety
of asset classes across the globe. Mr. Sarteau joined Cargill
in 1993 in the Strategy and Business Development group in
Minneapolis, and joined CVI in 1996 to start the Paris office.
He moved to London in 1998 and assumed responsibility of
the European business in 1999.
Prior to joining Cargill, Mr. Sarteau managed acquisition and
strategy projects for Hewlett-Packard’s European operations
out of Geneva, Switzerland, and worked on a wide range of
consulting projects for Andersen Consulting in the United
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States, France and Switzerland.
Mr. Sarteau holds an MBA from INSEAD and MSc. in Electrical Engineering from INPG in Grenoble,
France.
Mr. Sarteau also holds the following positions OI US board director, OTI board director, OISL
(Ghana) and BOM (Mozambique banks board director (Central banks approved), Member of several
committees across the US, Network and local African boards (ALCO, Audit and Risk, etc) and Board
of Governors member and supporter of the organization since 2002.
Jane Nelson
Over the past six years Jane Nelson has collaborated with
numerous organizations responding to the HIV/AIDS crisis in
Africa. Her work has taken her to Congo, South Africa, Zambia,
Rwanda, Malawi, Uganda and Ethiopia. Some of the organizations
she has partnered with include World Vision, Hope International,
World Help, Africa Ministries Network, Opportunity International,
Bridge 2 Rwanda, Pura Vida Partners and Stanford University
Institute of Design.
Jane has extensive experience in finance and marketing. Having
worked with a major financial institution during the period of
banking deregulation, she gained first-hand experience in
managing businesses during periods of rapid change. She has served at her church as Treasurer,
Elder and Campaign Chair for a $20mm capital funds campaign for land acquisition. Jane also serves
on the board of Pura Vida Partners.
Jane graduated from San Diego State University with a BS in Marketing.

Daniel Ato Kwamina Mensah
Daniel Ato Kwamina Mensah has been in the banking industry
since 1985. He previously worked as an Educationist, where he
taught at the various levels of the educational structure.
Mr. Mensah was employed as a Research Economist by the
National Investment Bank in 1985. In 1990, he was drafted to
be part of a Team that effectively introduced corporate banking
services and transformed commercial banking activities of the
National Investment Bank. He was also the Liaison Officer for the
Centre for the Development of Industry – an EU/ACP industrial
promotion wing for the North-South co-operation.
In July 1993, he was appointed as the Executive Secretary/ Chief
Executive Officer of the Ghana Association of Bankers, a position
he has occupied to date. As the Chief Executive Officer of the Ghana Association of Bankers, he is
responsible for the day to day management of the Association’s Secretariat and is the liaison between
all licensed banks and all other external institutions including the West African Bankers Association,
Government and the Bank of Ghana. He has over the years initiated thought leadership activities to
support efforts of the banking industry in shaping Ghana’s economy.
Mr.  Mensah holds a B.A (Hons) degree in Economics with Political Science from the University of
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Ghana, an MSc (Econs) degree in International Trade and Finance from the University of Ibadan and
an MBA degree from the Ghana Institute of Management and Public Administration (GIMPA).
He is a Member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, Ghana. He is also a Fellow of both the
Chartered Institute of Bankers (FCIB) and the Institute of Loan and Risk Management (FILRM).

Kwasi Yirenkyi
Kwasi Yirenkyi is currently the Managing Director of Starwin
Products Limited, a pharmaceutical manufacturing company listed
on the Ghana Stock Exchange. He is responsible for the overall
direction of the company.
He also holds a position as the treasurer of the Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers Association of Ghana.
Prior to his Managing Director role, Kwasi was a senior corporate
manager with Merchant Bank Ghana Limited, now Universal
Merchant Bank, from 2000 to 2007. He has had further employment
with Deloitte and Touche Management Consultants as well as
Empretec Ghana, a business development company.
He had his education at the George Mason University and the Southern New Hampshire University,
both in the United States of America.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Message
I am delighted to present to you the performance of Opportunity
International Savings and Loans for the financial year ended 31st
December 2016. First and foremost I must allude to the fact that
the business had its fair share of the unfavorable macro- economic
pressures which was characterized by high levels of volatility in the
area of exchange rate, interest rate and inflation thereby impacting
on cost and the desired ability to generate revenue.
In spite of these challenges, I am pleased to inform you that the
institution rose up to the occasion to deliver yet another sterling
performance through the effective and efficient utilization of our
human resources to implement our agreed strategies as well as
the excellent management of our assets and liabilities.
Economic Outlook
During the period under review, the overall macro-economic outlook of the country did not show any
clear sign that it was out of the woods. Though it was a bit modest compared to the last three years
which was hit by slowdown in global growth due to lower global trade volumes, a near collapse in
the international commodity market, and generally higher levels of risk aversion from International
investors. The past year saw some marginal level of recovery due to significant tightening of monetary
and fiscal policies.
In the final analysis, this led to some stability in the country’s economic conditions throughout the
year which was evident in the improvement in the inflation rate to close the year at 15.4 percent down
from 17.2 percent, monetary policy rate at 25.5 percent from 26 percent and a largely stable foreign
exchange rates.
Banking Environment
In the banking industry, total assets stood at GHS80.9 billion at the end of 2016 with 17.4 percent
non-performing loans leading to a provision of about 8.4 percent as bad debts in their books.
Client deposits ended the year 2016 at GHS51.4 billion, growing by 26.8 percent with demand
deposits (current and savings accounts) growing more than time or fixed deposits as at the end of the
year according to the latest summary of Macroeconomic and Financial Stability report by the Bank of
Ghana. While demand deposits grew by 22.4 percent, time deposits shot up by 15.5 percent.
Financial Performance
Our institution delivered a strong financial performance in spite of intense competition and a tough
operating environment. This is evidenced by a profit after tax of GH¢5.56 million compared to
GH¢1.87 million in the previous year. Most of our business lines recorded growth, which is reflective
of our calculated effort to create sustainable value and a focused implementation of our business
strategy. The total asset base of the Company grew by 24% from GH¢155.31 million in 2015 to
GH¢192.06 million in 2016.
Customer deposits grew by 26% to GHC124.70 million due to cognizant deposit mobilization
effort during the period. We maintained a continuous focus on enhancing the quality of relationship
management, credit monitoring and recoveries to effectively manage the quality of our loan book.
That notwithstanding, specific and challenging advances were adequately provided for and recovery
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measures put in place. Our capital adequacy ratio remained relatively high at 14.85% arising out of
our increased earnings in 2016. We will leverage on our strong capital position to sustain planned
future growth of our business.
Operational Performance
By keeping abreast with the new trend in banking to offer the best of products and services and
convenient banking to delight our customers, we introduced a mobile solution dubbed ‘Opportunity
Mobile’ to serve our customers. This effectively will enable customers do all basic transactions on
their phones in the comfort of their homes and workplaces without coming to the   banking halls.  
The rapid growth in mobile banking enrollment is likely to help the institution reach out to One Million
customers by the end of 2020.   This will surely impact positively on revenue, through enhanced
efficiency and its consequent reduction in costs of serving clients and clients accessing us.
Staff productivity over the period was highly commendable, considering the fact that there was a
deliberate action to reduce headcount, which did not affect the overall productivity as had been
planned. Staff capacity development remained largely on course, with a number of staff being
promoted into positions of higher responsibility, and into leadership, having gone through the mill
over the past years. Our people strategy will continue to focus on attracting the best talents on the
market and developing their capacities continually whilst ensuring a high rate of retention to facilitate
the achievement of our set targets.  
Conclusion
On behalf of the Management, I would like to appreciate our customers for their continued patronage
of our products and services and to all stakeholders for your unwavering business relationships and
support. Finally, I would like to thank our able employees for their continued loyalty to the Company.
I am positive that with your continued support, 2017 will be a successful year.
Thank you and God bless us all.
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Executive Committee
Kwame Owusu-Boateng, Chief Executive Officer
Kwame has 16 years professional experience which covers
International Trade Finance, Banking Operations, Micro Finance,
and Executive Management.  He joined Opportunity International
Savings and Loans in 2006 from a private International Trade
Finance firm.  
Kwame joined Opportunity International as the first Branch
Operations Officer.   By dint of hard work and his level of
excellence, he was promoted through the positions of Branch
Operations Manager, Branch Manager, Regional Manager and
Chief Relationship Officer from 2009 to 2012. He was appointed
as acting CEO in 2012 and was confirmed by the Board as the first
local CEO of Opportunity International Savings and Loans in August 2013.  
His key strengths are in driving sales, Operations Management, and Effective Leadership. He has
the skill of building successful teams and energizing them to achieve great results and he is a people
person with the ability to spot and develop talents.
He is a graduate from the University of Cape Coast, Ghana with a BSC degree. Additionally he
graduated with an Executive MBA from Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology in
Kumasi, Ghana. Kwame has attended various executive programs, some of which includes The
Boulder Microfinance Training Program in Turin, a certificate program in Strategic Management in
Micro Finance from Harvard Business School, Boston, and has also attended the African Board
Fellowship program organized by Accion International.

Samuel Afful CA(ICAG)
Mr Afful is the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of OISL with over twenty years of work experience with
remarkable records of accomplishments. He has been in OISL for
twelve years.
He is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants, Ghana (ICAG) with eight years post
qualification experience. He also holds Executive MBA in Finance
and a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting. His field of specialty is in
the area of Finance, Accounting, Auditing, Strategy and Control.

Kofi Obeng-Berkyaw, Chief Operating Officer
Kofi has 21 years working experience in commercial banking, micro-finance and over 10 years’
experience in executive management positions.
Mr. Obeng-Berkyaw started his career as a Clerk and rose through the ranks to the position of a
branch Operations Manager in the Agricultural Development Bank (the biggest Bank dedicated to
Agriculture in Ghana) where he worked for 14 years.
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Kofi joined Opportunity International Savings and Loans in 2007 as
the Branch Manager for the Accra branch. He was then promoted
in 2008 to the position of Head of Banking Operations.
Kofi was further promoted to the role of the Acting Chief Operations
Officer of the institution.  Key among his achievements in this role
was the setting up of the centralized data unit, automation of many
manual processes, introducing new policies and procedures to
ensure an efficient and well controlled environment in OISL. He is
currently the confirmed Chief Operations Officer of the institution.
He is a product of the University of Ghana with B.A. Hons degree
and also holds a certificate from Boulder Institute of Micro Finance
and a Masters’ degree in Marketing with the Methodist University College of Ghana.
Albert Appiah, Chief Relationship Officer
Albert is currently the Chief Relationship Officer in charge of Sales
and with supervisory responsibilities over branch administration.
Albert has been with Opportunity International since 2004 and has
risen through operational ranks of managing branches as well as
departmental/product teams with success.
He is skilled practitioner in the micro finance industry and has over
a decade working experience garnered from time with Sinapi Aba
Trust and others.

cornerstone of his success.

Albert has a passion for harnessing manpower potential in
achieving growth plans while client service delivery has been the

Albert holds a degree in Banking and Finance as well as a qualification in accounting from the Institute
of Chartered Accountants (Ghana). He also holds an MBA in Banking and Finance from University of
Cape Coast through Kings University College, Ghana.

Abena Aboagyewaa Nsiah Adjei, Deputy Chief Relationship
Officer
Abena has 18 years of experience in Micro Finance. She has been
with OISL since its inception in 2004.  
Abena joined OISL as Loans Supervisor and then promoted to
Branch Relationship Manager, Branch Manager, and Regional
Relationship Officer for Northern Sector, Head of ISME for the   
Northern Sector and Area Head for Central-West Area.  Currently,
Abena is the Deputy Chief Relationship Officer in charge of driving
sales.
Prior to joining Opportunity International, she  worked with Sinapi
Aba Trust  for 5 years as a Loan Officer, Loan Supervisor and Youth Apprenticeship Coordinator for
OI-Network from 2002-2004.
She holds an MBA in Strategic Management & Management Consulting and a degree in Law and
Geography from Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology.
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Vivian Akofa Selase Mottey, Head of Transformation
VIVIAN AKOFA MOTTEY (Head of Transformation)
Vivian Akofa Selase Mottey, Head of Transformation Vivian has 15
years of professional experience as a Microfinance Practitioner
and Management Consultant and 20 Years’ experience in the
Public Service.
She joined Opportunity International Savings and Loans (OISL)
in 2008 as a Branch Relationship Manager and rose through the
ranks to become the Northern Sector Area Manager, Training
Manager, Senior Transformation Manager, Head of Micro Business
(Southern Sector) and currently Head of Transformation.
Before joining OISL, Vivian was the Chairperson of Association of Financial NGOs (ASSFIN) MidZone
(Brong Ahafo/Ashanti Regions), Branch Manager of APED (now Vision Fund) responsible for Brong
Ahafo/Ashanti Regions, Consulting Partner with IBS Consulting Alliance and Project Administrator/
Accountant of SANKOFA Programme (rural development wing of African Centre for Human
Development).
Vivian holds a Commonwealth Executive MBA from KNUST, a B.Sc. Administration (Accounting
Option) from University of Ghana and an ACCA Foundation Certificate from IPS and Certificate in
Financial Management from USDA Graduate School, Washington DC, USA.

Patrick Kyei, Head of Marketing
Patrick has over 20 years’ experience in Marketing, Sales, branding,
delivery channels, product and business development and
research in Microfinance and Commercial business environment.
His greatest asset is his passion for building businesses through
staff motivation and mentorship. Patrick joined OISL in 2006 and
has worked in different roles as Marketing Manager and Head of
Communication. In 2010, he was appointed as Head of Change
Management and Special Projects when OISL went through critical
challenges. With his change management skills, he supported the
leadership team to turn the company around.
Prior to joining OISL, Patrick worked with several organizations in UK and Ghana. Currently, he is the
Head of Marketing responsible for marketing, business and product development and research. He
is also instrumental in developing Business Plan and funding proposal for external donors.
Patrick holds a Master’s Degree in Marketing from London Metropolitan University (formerly called
University of North London).

Ebenezer Cofie-Baidoo, Head of Human Resources
Ebenezer has over eight (8) years of experience in Human Resources Management. He joined
Opportunity International Savings and Loans Limited in January 2008 as an HR Operations Officer
with responsibility for Compensation and Benefits. He was later that year promoted to the position of
HR Business Partner for the Operations Division until 2010, when he became HR Business Partner
for Head Office Support Functions and the Northern Sector of the business.
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Prior to joining OISL Ebenezer worked as a Human Resources
Consultant at Shawbell Consulting.
Ebenezer’s motivation to work for OISL stems from the joy in
hearing the success stories of our numerous clients whose lives
have been impacted by the services rendered to them by our very
dedicated staff on a daily basis. This drives him to do more to
ensure more lives are touched.
He graduated from the University of Ghana with a Degree in
Psychology in 2000. He further pursued his masters at the
same University and graduated with an M.Phil. in Industrial and
Organizational Psychology.

Mr. Francis Takyi, Chief Risk Officer
Mr. Francis Takyi has over fifteen years’ experience in banking.
He joined Opportunity International as a Branch Manager in 2008
and worked through the ranks at various sections of the institution
at managerial levels, including Branch Management, Operations,
Finance, and Risk Management.
In 2013 he was appointed by the Opportunity International
Network, USA, as their Regional Risk Director for Africa, where he
was instrumental in building the risk management capacity within
Opportunity International African risk teams through training,
business risk reviews and regular interactions with the local risk
teams, until 2016 when he was again seconded to Opportunity
International Savings and Loans Ltd, Ghana as a result of business restructuring. He also supported
Opportunity Bank Malawi in 2015 as its Chief Risk Officer whilst still working as the Regional Risk
Director.
Prior to joining Opportunity, Francis worked with ProCredit Savings And Loans Co. Ltd. as the Head
of Finance department. He also worked with HFC Bank, Ghana, where he was in charge of operations
and credit at one of its flagship branches, Accra Central Branch.
He holds a degree in Accounting and Economics from the University of Ghana, Legon and an MBA
in Finance from the Methodist University College, Ghana. He is final professional level student of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers Ghana, and a part qualified of ACCA.

Rosemary Seneadza, Head of Legal
Rosemary Seneadza is a lawyer who has a vast wealth of experience
working in different disciplines. Prior to embarking on a career in
law, she graduated with a BSc degree from the University of Ghana.
She then had a stint at teaching where she sharpened her
communication, interpersonal and people development skills.
Subsequently, she went on to pursue a degree in Law (LLB) and
gained her Qualifying Law Certificate QLC) from the Ghana School
of Law. She passed the Bar exam with an elective in Banking Law.  
She went into private practice under the tutelage of Mr. Anthony
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Forson, the Vice President of the Ghana Bar Association in his chamber, T. Forson & Co. where she
engaged in research, court room litigation and gained in-depth knowledge in various areas of the law,
including Commercial, Banking and Corporate Law.
She joined Opportunity International in January 2012 as a Legal Associate and has since been honing
her skills in solving problems within the legal framework of the industry.

Augustine Ayinbisah (Chief Internal Auditor)
Mr. Ayinbisah is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants, Ghana(ICAG). He holds an
MBA in Accounting and Finance from the University of Professional
Studies, Accra. (UPSA) He has over ten (10) years’ experience in
Audit, Finance, Accountancy and Taxation.
He joined Opportunity International in 2017, as the Chief Internal
Auditor, from Akuapem Rural Bank Limited where he held the key
positions of Head of Internal Audit and later as Head of Finance.
He began his career with Egala Atitso & Associates (Chartered
Accountants and Business Advisors) as a trainee Accountant and
by dint of hard work rose to become an Audit Supervisor/Manager.
He has a diverse background in Audit, Accountancy, Finance and Taxation. He has provided Tax
Consultancy Services in the past and led Audit teams to Audit major corporations and companies
such as Ghana National Petroleum Corporation(GNPC), Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA), State
Enterprises Commission, Exper Travel & Tours Ltd, C B Electric Ltd, Engineers & Planners Limited,
Darbem Clinic etc.
He has experience in Donor funded project Audits, having led Audit teams to Audit Food Crops
Development Project(FCDP), Alliance for Reproductive Health Rights(ARHR), and SEND Ghana etc.
funded by various donors including the World Bank, African Development Bank and DANIDA.

Joshua Ninson, Anti-Money Laundering Reporting Officer
Joshua started his career with Opportunity International as a
Relationship officer in 2006 after his National Service. He has
occupied various positions such as Deposit Mobilization Monitoring
officer, Deposit Mobilization Supervisor and Internal Auditor.
He was appointed as the Anti-Money Laundering Reporting
Officer in 2013 and was confirmed by the Board in 2015. Joshua
has extensive experience in microfinance in areas of AntiMoney laundering and terrorism financing (AML/TF), audit, risk
assessment, compliance and operational risk.
Joshua holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from University of
Cape Coast. He is a Chartered Financial Economist from the Association of Certified Chartered
Economists (ACCE/AAFM -USA), Due Diligence Certified and a member of Association of Certified
Compliance Professional in Africa (ACCPA).
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Products and Services
SAVINGS PRODUCT
Savings Account
An interest bearing account for you to deposit
cash and withdraw anytime without notice.
• Minimum opening amount is GH¢ 10.00
• Earn interest on balance over GH¢ 200.00
Current Account
A demand deposit account for you to deposit
and withdraw cash anytime without notice.
• Minimum opening amount is GH¢ 20.00  
• We give you personalized cheque book
Susu Deposit
A daily savings account for customers who do
not have time to come to the bank. Our deposit
mobilisation officers walk to your doorsteps daily
to collect your savings.
• Daily Contributions
• Flexible withdrawal options
• Opportunity to access our loan products
Fixed Term Deposit
A fixed interest bearing account for a prescribed
period.
• Minimum amount of GH¢500.00
• You earn competitive interest rates.
LOAN PRODUCTS
Group Loans
Loans for groups of micro entrepreneurs for
business expansion.
• No collateral is required
• Access to free training in financial literacy,
• Leadership and community development
training etc.
• Group guarantee is required.

Susu Loans
Loans for Susu deposit clients after a required
period of contribution
• Repay with small amount on daily basis
Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) Loans
Working capital for Small and Medium Scale
entrepreneurs
• Minimum Loan of  GH¢ 10,000.00
• Maximum repayment period of  36 months
School Improvement Loans
Short and medium term finance for private
schools.
• Maximum repayment period of  36 months
School Fees Loans
Loans for payment of ward’s school fees and
related expenses. Clients in 5th cycle and above
do not need guarantor(s) if the amount is not
more than GH¢1000.00
Empowerment Loans
Loans for the physically challenged entrepreneur
for business expansion at concessionary rate.
Agric Micro and SME Loans
Micro, small and medium scale finance for
farming and Agric related businesses such as
irrigation, agro - marketing and processing, Agric
equipment and transportation.
Salary Loans
Short and medium term finance for salaried
workers.
Maximum repayment period of 36 months.

Church Loans
Short and medium term loans to assist in church
Adehye Group Loans
Loans for loyal group loan  clients in   4th  cycle   development.
Maximum repayment period of 36 months
and beyond who want to maintain their group.

Adehye Individual Loans
Loans for loyal group loan clients in 4th cycle
without being in a group.
• No collateral and guarantor required
Individual Loans
Working capital for individual business expansion.
• Minimum Loan of  GH¢500.00
• Maximum repayment period of 12 months
• Guarantor is required  

Ahoto Housing Loans
Housing loans for small and medium scale
entrepreneurs, farmers and salaried workers.
There are two main types:  Home improvement
and building in stages loans.
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Product Innovations

(Agriculture Finance Model, Education Finance Model and
Technology Platforms
Agricultural Finance Model
Coordinating with all stakeholders in the
agricultural value chain is essential to the
success of the farmer and Opportunity’s
agricultural finance initiative
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•

Providing farmers with the right size
loan for the right amount and type of
inputs.

•

Providing savings accounts to preclude
side-selling.

•

Partnering with commercial extension
service providers.

•

Piloted MEOS for household mapping
and profiling for new clients

Education Finance Model:
Our model creates sustainable generational impact to break the cycle of poverty by:
Improving Access
to education and the
quality of  education in
poor communities

Enabling parents to
consistently keep
all of their children
in school

School loans
School fee loans
Savings
accounts

Education Finance Products
•

OISL currently has the MasterCard and CAT
programs  supporting Education finance.

•

Active School loans – 195 schools with a value
of GHS466,731

•

School fees loans – 675 loans with a value of
GHS729,800

Technology Platforms
•
•
•
•
•
•

Enterprise OpenSky: provides a means of making transactions
in the field operate seamlessly with T24.
E-Mobilization: enhances account crediting of daily
mobilizations from petty traders and clients willing to save.
Agric Data Capture: enables the capturing of
mapping information and SPM data associated with lending
and deposit activities with farmers.
Nation-wide e-payment platform (e-Zwich): the provision of
debit cards to clients to facilitate access to funds 24/7.
Opportunity Mobile: Flagship cell phone banking solution
which affords clients the opportunity to do core banking
transactions on their phones
Opportunity Cash: Proprietary ATM offering which is
integrated with GhIPPS, e-Zwich and gh-link shared platforms
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Financial Statements

OPPORTUNITY INTERNATIONAL SAVINGS AND LOANS LIMITED
For the year ended 31 December 2016			
		
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF OPPORTUNITY INTERNATIONAL
SAVINGS AND LOANS LIMITED
Report of the Directors
The Directors in submitting to the shareholders the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 report as follows:
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view of Opportunity International Savings and Loans Limited, comprising statement of
financial position at 31 December 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements which
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 1963
(Act 179), and the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking Amendment Act, 2007
(Act 738). In addition, the directors are responsible for the preparation of directors’ report.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of
risk management.
The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
have no reason to believe the business will not be a going concern.
The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements give a true and fair view
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
Financial Report and Dividend
The financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the attached
financial statements, highlights of which are as follows:
31 December
		

2016
GH¢

2015
GH¢

8,368,209

3,352,377

(2,807,555)

(1,483,904)

5,560,654

1,868,473

(3,025,199)

(1,016,261)

leaving a balance of

2,535,455

852,212

which when added to a balance brought forward on retained

1,718,615

866,403

earnings of gives a balance of

4,254,070

1,718,615

Profit before taxation is
from which is deducted taxation of
giving a profit after taxation for the year of
less net transfer to statutory reserve fund and other reserves of
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As indicated above, in accordance with Section 29(a) of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended
by the Banking Amendment Act, 2007 (Act 738), an amount of GH¢ 2,780,327 was transferred to
the statutory reserve fund from profit for the year, bringing the cumulative balance on the statutory
reserve fund to GH¢ 7,687,438 at the year end.
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.
Nature of Business
The principal activities carried out by the Company include the provision of micro finance facilities
in the form of loans to the general public, with the emphasis on lending to those in society with
limited incomes who would not ordinarily qualify for a loan from a traditional bank. The Company
also accepts deposits of various types including current accounts, savings accounts and enters into
contracts for fixed deposits.
The Company is licensed to operate the business of a savings and loans company.
There was no change in the nature of the Company’s business during the year.
Holding Company
The majority shareholder of the Company, Opportunity Transformation Investments holds 75.95% of
the stated capital of the company
Auditor
The auditor, KPMG, will continue in office in accordance with Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
1963 (Act 179).
Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company were approved by the board of directors on 30 March 2017
and were signed on their behalf by:
           Kwame Owusu-Boateng                                                 Daniel Ato Kwamina Mensah

.......................................……….
			
……....….............……………
DIRECTOR
					
DIRECTOR

Opportunity International Savings and loans Annual Report 2016 23

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  TO THE MEMBERS
OF OPPORTUNITY INTERNATIONAL SAVINGS AND
LOANS LIMITED
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Opportunity International Savings and Loans Limited
(“the Bank”), which comprise the statement of financial position at 31 December 2016, and the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 9 to 75.
In our opinion, these financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Opportunity
International Savings and Loans Limited at 31 December 2016, and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179) and the Banking Act, 2004 (Act
673) as amended by the Banking Amendment Act, 2007 (Act 738).
Report on the Financial Statements
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility section of
our report.  We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Corporate
Governance information included in the financial statements and the Directors’ Report as required by
the Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179) and the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking
Amendment Act, 2007 (Act 738) but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
			
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the
Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179) and the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking
Amendment Act, 2007 (Act 738), and for such internal control as the directors determine is

24 Opportunity International Savings and loans Annual Report 2016

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report  that  includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as
a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
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we identify during our audit.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Section 133 of the  Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179) and Section
78 of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking Amendment Act, 2007 (Act 738).
We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept and the statements of financial position and
comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.
Non‑compliance with a section of Other reserve
The Bank’s transactions were within its powers and the Bank generally complied with the relevant
provisions of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking Amendment Act, 2007
(Act 738).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nathaniel D.
Harlley (ICAG/P/1056).

KPMG

.................................................................
For and on behalf of:
KPMG: (ICAG/F/2017/038)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
13 YIYIWA DRIVE, ABELENKPE
P O BOX GP 242
ACCRA

…………………………... 2017
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER
Note
2016
		GH¢
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
16
32,319,743
Investment securities
17
45,295,441
Due from related party
18
3,663,269
Loans to customers
19
86,641,194
Property and equipment
20
10,169,047
Intangible assets
21
3,298,594
Deferred tax assets
22
‑
Other assets
23
10,667,418
Total assets		

2015
GH¢
13,115,957
25,992,859
3,663,269
89,684,649
13,849,751
753,167
4,723
8,244,969

192,054,706

155,309,344

24
26
27
14 (a)
22
28

124,704,293
19,630,975
5,929,195
974,667
313,745
7,459,028

98,741,874
16,828,172
2,849,028
94,802
‑
7,377,090

Total liabilities		

159,011,903

125,890,966

29 (a)
29 (b)
29 (b)
29 (b)
29 (b)
29 (b)

18,637,520
7,687,438
1,100,215
1,363,560
‑
4,254,070

18,637,520
4,907,111
855,343
294,214
3,005,575
1,718,615

Total Equity		
Total equity and liabilities		

33,042,803
192,054,706

29,418,378
155,309,344

Liabilities
Customers’ deposits
Borrowings
Grants
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Equity
Stated capital
Statutory reserve
Credit risk reserve
Other reserve
Deposit for shares
Retained earnings

     Kwame Owusu-Boateng                                                        Daniel Ato Kwamina Mensah

.......................................……….
			
……....….............……………
DIRECTOR 					
DIRECTOR
The financial statements of the Company were approved by the board of directors on 30 March 2017.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Note

2016

2015

		GH¢

GH¢

Interest income

7

59,718,878

52,026,544

Interest expense

7

(11,230,706)

7,239,827)

Net interest income		

48,488,172

44,786,717

Other operating income

8

12,484,292

7,492,215

Other income

9

2,457,165

4,519,016

Net trading and other income		

14,941,457

12,011,231

Revenue		
63,429,629
56,797,948
Impairment loss on financial assets

10

(3,269,947)

(2,362,465)

Personnel expenses

11

(25,599,831)

(26,809,184)

Occupancy costs

12

(1,629,499)

(1,504,810)

20(a)

(4,024,549)

(3,440,026)

13

(20,537,594)

(19,329,086)

Profit before income tax		

8,368,209

3,352,377

14

(2,807,555)

(1,483,904)

Profit after tax attributable to equity		

5,560,654

1,868,473

Other comprehensive income, net of tax		

‑

‑

Total comprehensive income attributable 		

5,560,654

1,868,473

Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Income tax expense

holders of the Company

to equity holders of the Company
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Stated
Deposit
Other
Capital for Share Reserve
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
Balance as at
1 January 2015
Profit for the year
Transfer from
credit risk reserve

15,396,725 3,240,795

Statutory Credit risk
Reserve Reserve
GH¢
GH¢

Retained
Earnings
GH¢

Total
GH¢

294,214

3,972,874

773,319

866,403 24,544,330
1,868,473 1,868,473
(82,024)
‑

‑
‑

‑
‑

‑
‑

‑
‑

‑
82,024

Transfer to
statutory reserve

‑

‑ 934,237

‑

(934,237)

‑

-

Net transfers
to reserves

‑

‑

‑

934,237

82,024

(1,016,261)

‑

Transfer from
deposit for shares

3,240,795 (3,240,795)

‑

‑

‑

‑

‑

Deposit for shares

‑ 3,005,575

‑

‑

‑

‑ 3,005,575

3,240,795 (235,220)

‑

‑

‑

‑ 3,005,575

Balance at
31 December
2015

18,637,520 3,005,575

294,214

4,907,111

855,343

1,718,615 29,418,378

Balance at
1 January 201

18,637,520 3,005,575

294,214

4,907,111

855,343

1,718,615 29,418,378

‑

‑

‑

‑

‑
‑
‑

‑
‑
‑

‑
2,780,327
2,780,327

Transfer to borrowings
(Note 26)
Fair value measurement
on related party
borrowings (Note 26)

‑ (3,005,575)

‑

‑

‑

‑ (3,005,575)

‑ 1,069,346

‑

‑

‑ 1,069,346

Total transactions
with owners of the
Company

‑ (3,005,575) 1,069,346

‑

‑

‑ (1,936,229)

7,687,438

1,100,215

4,254,070 33,042,803

Total transactions
with owners of
the Company

Profit for the year

‑

5,560,654

5,560,654

244,872 (244,872)
‑ (2,780,327)
244,872 (3,025,199)

‑
‑
‑

Regulatory and other reserves transfers
Transfer to credit risk reserve
Transfer to statutory reserve
Net transfers to reserves

‑
‑
‑

Transactions with owners of the Company

Balance at
31 December 2016

‑

8,637,520

‑ 1,363,560
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
					
Note
						
Profit after tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Net impairment loss on financial assets
Net interest income
Profit on disposal of property equipment
Deferred grants released to income
Write offs of cash shortage and other accounts
Assets write‑off of intangible asset
Income tax expense

20(a)
10
7
20(b)
27
20
14

Changes in:
Investment securities
Loans to customers
Other assets
Due from related party
Customer deposits
Other liabilities
Interest received
Interest paid
Taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activities

7
7
14(a)

2016
GH¢

2015
GH¢

5,560,654

1,868,473

4,024,549
3,269,947
(48,488,172)
(125,160)
(913,441)
291,415
4,720
2,807,555
(33,567,933)

3,440,026
2,362,465
(44,786,717)
(95,001)
(3,223,470)
8,170
‑
1,483,904
(38,942,150)

(14,511,647)
613,981
(3,262,922)
‑
25,962,419
81,938
(24,684,164)
59,718,878
(11,230,706)
(886,913)
22,917,095

(1,940,395)
(1,880,059)
(2,999,257)
(2,064,052)
19,747,436
3,099,260
(24,979,217)
52,026,544
(7,239,827)
(37,047)
19,770,453

(1,773,786)
188,510
(765,332)
(2,350,608)

(3,949,198)
282,584
(58,496)
(3,725,110)

8,574,729
(7,906,666)
3,575,936
‑
4,243,999
24,810,486
33,899,794
(815,765)

3,000,000
(3,608,633)
785,256
1,817,914
1,994,537
18,039,880
16,679,936
(820,022)

57,894,515

33,899,794

32,319,743
25,574,772
57,894,515

13,115,957
20,783,837
33,899,794

Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Net cash flow used in investing activities

20
20(b)
21

Financing activities						
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Grants received
Deposits for shares
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Balance at beginning
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances
Investment securities
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 16
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26
26
27

16
                 17, 5(C)

NOTES FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Reporting entity
Opportunity International Savings and Loans Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Ghana. The address of the Company’s registered office is No. D765/3 Kwame
Nkrumah Avenue, P. O. Box JT 323, Accra. The financial statements of the Company as at, and
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as stated in this report. The Company is a subsidiary of
Opportunity Transformation Investments, USA. The principal activities carried out by the Company
include the provision of micro finance facilities in the form of loans to the general public, with the
emphasis on lending to those in society with limited incomes who would not ordinarily qualify for a
loan from a traditional bank. The Company also accepts deposits of various types including current
accounts, savings accounts and enters into contracts for fixed deposits.
2. Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). They were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2017.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 38.
3. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedi, which is the Company’s functional currency.
4. Use of judgements and estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.
(a) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below in relation to the
impairment of financial instruments and in the following notes:
Note 6 – determination of fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs; and
Notes 22 (a) – recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
carryforward tax losses can be used.
Impairment of financial instruments
Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on the basis described in Note
38 (g) (vii).
The individual component of the total allowance for impairment applies to financial assets evaluated
individually for impairment and is based on management’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgements about a debtor’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and management takes into consideration the required
compulsory savings maintained by the customers. A collective component of the total allowance is
established for groups of homogeneous loans that were not found to be individually impaired (loss
‘incurred but not reported’ or IBNR).
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The collective allowance for groups of homogeneous loans is established using statistical methods
such as a formula approach based on historical loss rate experience. Management applies judgement
to ensure that the estimate of loss arrived at on the basis of historical information is appropriately
adjusted, where relevant,  to reflect the type of product at the reporting date.
The IBNR allowance covers credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans and advances with similar
credit risk characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired
items but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified.
In assessing the need for collective loss allowance, management considers factors such as credit
quality, portfolio size, concentrations and economic factors. To estimate the required allowance,
assumptions are made to define how inherent losses are modelled and to determine the required
input parameters, based on historical experience and current economic conditions. The accuracy of
the allowance depends on the model assumptions and parameters used in determining the collective
allowance.
5. Financial risk review
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to financial risks and the Company’s
management of capital.
For information on the Company’s financial risk management framework, See Note 36.
A.
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

Credit risk, collateral given and offsetting:
Credit quality analysis
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Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
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i. Regulatory capital
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(A) Credit risk
For the definition of credit risk and information on how credit risk is managed by the Company, See
Note 36 (B).
(i) Analysis of credit quality
The tables below set out information about the credit quality of financial assets and the allowance
for impairment/loss held by the Company against those assets.
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Maximum exposure to credit risk				
Note
2016
2015
		 GH¢
GH¢
Carrying amount

86,641,194

89,684,649

Grade 6: Substandard

2,176,646

1,727,933

Grade 7: Doubtful

1,149,948

551,977

Grade 8: Loss

4,263,257

1,895,950

Total gross amount

7,589,851

4,175,860

(4,278,302)

(2,075,579)

3,311,549

2,100,281

83,590,281

87,646,764

561,626

533,115

84,151,907

88,179,879

(822,262)

(595,511)

83,329,645

87,584,368

30–60 days

2,176,646

1,727,933

61‑90 days

1,149,948

551,977

669,782

669,087

3,593,475

1,226,863

7,589,851

4,175,860

Grade 6: Substandard

2,176,646

1,727,933

Grade 7: Doubtful

1,149,948

551,977

Grade 8: Loss

4,263,257

1,895,950

7,589,851

4,175,860

Individual

(4,278,302)

(2,075,579)

Collective

(822,262)

(595,511)

(5,100,564)

(2,671,090)

At amortised cost

Allowance for impairment (specific)
Net carrying amount
Neither past due nor impaired
Grade 1–3: Low–fair risk

Past due but not impaired
Grade 4–5: Watch list
Total gross amount
Allowance for impairment (collective)
Net carrying amount
Past due

91 ‑ 120 days
120 days+
Individually impaired			

Allowance for impairment

Total allowance for impairment

19

Impaired loans
See accounting policy in Note 38 (g) (vii).
The Company regards a loan and advance as impaired when there is objective evidence that a loss
event has occurred since initial recognition and the loss event has an impact on future estimated cash
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flows from the asset.
A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually
considered to be impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash
flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.
Loans that are subject to a collective IBNR provision are not considered impaired.
Impaired loans and advances are graded 6 to 8 in the Company’s internal credit risk grading system
See Notes 4 (a) and 36 (B).
Loans that are past due but not impaired
Loans that are ‘past due but not impaired’ are those for which contractual interest or principal
payments are past due but the Company believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis
of the level of security or collateral available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed to the
Company. The amounts disclosed exclude assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Loans with renegotiated terms and the Company’s forbearance policy
See accounting policy in Note38(g)(vii).
The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market
conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration
of the customer. An existing loan may be derecognised and the renegotiated loan recognised as a
new loan at fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Notes 38 (g) (vii).
The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance
activities’) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Company’s
forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default
on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable
efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms.
The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and
amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance
policy.
For the purposes of disclosures in these financial statements, ‘loans with renegotiated terms’ are
defined as loans that have been restructured due to a deterioration in the borrower’s financial position,
for which the Company has made concessions by agreeing to terms and conditions that are more
favourable for the borrower than the Company had provided initially and that it would not otherwise
consider. A loan continues to be presented as part of loans with renegotiated terms until maturity,
earlier repayment or until it is written off.
Irrespective of whether loans with renegotiated terms have been derecognised or not, they remain
disclosed as impaired until there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant reduction in the
risk of non‑payment of future cash flows and there are no other indicators of impairment.
Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of  GH¢ 57,894,515 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
GH¢ 33,899,794). The cash and cash equivalents are held with financial institutions.
(ii) Collateral held and other credit enhancements, and their financial effect
The Company holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its credit exposures.
The table below sets out the principal types of collateral held against different types of financial assets.
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Type of credit exposure
Note
		

2016
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Principal type
of collateral held

Loans to customers
19 204,749,035
106,594,849
				

Compulsory savings
and other properties

Loans to customers
The general creditworthiness of a customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality
of a loan extended to it (see Note 36 (B)). However, collateral provides additional security and the
Company generally requests that borrowers provide it. The Company may take collateral in the form
of compulsory savings.
Other types of collateral and credit enhancements
In addition to the compulsory savings used as collateral for loans, the Company also holds other
types of collateral and credit enhancements such as second charges and floating charges for which
specific values are not generally available.
Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral
The Company did not hold any financial and non‑financial assets resulting from taking possession of
collateral held as security against loans and advances at the reporting date.
(iii) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company holds financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable netting
arrangement irrespective of whether they are offset in the statement of financial position.
At the reporting date, customer deposits balance of GH¢ 15,552,660 (2015: GH¢ 14,293,657) was
held as compulsory savings over loans granted to a number of customers.
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk
The Company monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit
risk from loans and advances, lending commitments, financial guarantees and investment securities
is shown below.

					
Loans to customers
					
			2016
2015
			GH¢
GH¢
Carrying amount
Concentration by product:
Group loans
Individual loans
Nkosuo Susu loans
Adehye loans
Agric loans
Ahoto loans
Staff loans
Small/Medium Enterprise (SME) loans
Gross loans
Less: Impairment

86,641,194

89,684,649

21,344,265
10,394,630
2,879,987
13,957,581
28,697,570
45,322
4,824,490
9,597,913
91,741,758
(5,100,564)
86,641,194

21,006,123
11,701,765
2,468,385
14,074,175
19,483,638
58,648
6,624,532
16,938,473
92,355,739
(2,671,090)
89,684,649
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(v) Impaired loans
For the definition of ‘impaired financial asset’, See Notes 5(A).
For details of impairment allowance for loans to customer, See Note(b).
Set out below is an analysis of the gross and net (of allowance for impairment) amounts of individually
impaired loans by risk grade.
Loans to customers			
31 December 2016			

Gross
GH¢

Net
GH¢

Grade 6: Individually Impaired

2,176,646

1,577,269

Grade 7: Individually Impaired

1,149,948

392,256

Grade 8: Individually Impaired

4,263,257

1,340,319

Gross amount

7,589,851

3,309,844

Grade 6: Individually Impaired

1,727,933

904,609

Grade 7: Individually Impaired

551,977

220,209

Grade 8: Individually Impaired

1,895,950

1,017,473

Gross amount

4,175,860

2,142,291

31 December 2015

Key ratios on loans
Loan loss provision ratio is 5.56% (2015: 2.89%).
Percentage of gross non‑performing loans with respect to Bank of Ghana Prudential Norms
(specifically impaired) to total gross loans and advances is 8.27% (2015: 4.52%).
Ratio of fifty (50) largest exposure (gross funded) to total exposure is 0.72% (2015: 0.01%).
(B) Liquidity risk
For the definition of liquidity risk and information on how liquidity risk is managed by the Company,
See Note: 36 (C).
i. Exposure to liquidity risk
The key measure used by the Company for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of net liquid assets to
deposits from customers.
For this purpose, ‘liquid assets’ includes cash, cash reserve ratio balances with the Central Bank,
balances with banks, bills purchased/discounted up to 1 year, investments up to one year, swap
funds (sell/ buy) up to one year and tradable Government notes and bonds. ‘Volatile liabilities’ includes
demand deposits, other borrowings, District Assembly Common Funds (DACF) and all Governments
instruments which could be called at short notice, etc.
Details of the reported Company ratio of net liquid assets to deposits from customers at the reporting
date and during the reporting period were as follows.
			
2016
			%
At period end			
322
Average for the year
296
Maximum for the year
350
Minimum for the year
266

36 Opportunity International Savings and loans Annual Report 2016

2015
%
212
223
259
187

ii. Maturity analysis for financial assets and financial liabilities
The tables below set out the remaining contractual maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities.
Note
Carrying
Nominal
		
amount
inflow /
		
GH¢
(outflow)
			
GH¢

Less than
1 month
GH¢

1‑3
months
GH¢

3 months
to 1 year
GH¢

1‑ 5
year
GH¢

31 December 2016
Financial liability
by type
Non‑derivative
liabilities
Customers deposits

24

124,704,293 124,704,293

107,632,000

5,751,620

11,320,673

‑

Other liabilities

28

7,459,028

3,200,450

3,200,450

‑

‑

‑

Borrowings

26

19,630,975

19,630,975

2,038,633

‑

10,040,800

7,551,542

151,794,296 147,535,718

112,871,083

5,751,620

21,361,473

7,551,542

31 December 2015
Financial liability
by type
Non‑derivative
liabilities
Customers deposits

24

98,741,874

98,741,874

89,827,518

4,376,786

4,537,570

‑

Other liabilities

28

7,377,090

2,718,528

2,718,528

‑

‑

‑

Borrowings

26

16,828,172

16,828,172

38,633

‑

6,240,000 10,549,539

122,947,136 118,288,574

92,584,679

4,376,786

10,777,570 10,549,539

The amounts in the table above have been complied as follows.
Type of financial instrument			Basis on which amounts are compiled
Non‑derivative financial liabilities and financial
Undiscounted cash flows, which include
assets				estimated interest payments.
The Company’s expected cash flows on some financial assets and financial liabilities vary significantly
from the contractual cash flows. For example, demand deposits from customers are expected to
remain stable or increase and unrecognised loan commitments are not all expected to be drawn
down immediately.
As part of the management of liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities, the Company holds liquid
assets comprising cash and cash equivalents.
The table below sets out the carrying amounts of non‑derivative financial assets and financial liabilities
expected to be recovered or settled more than 12 months after the reporting date.
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Note		 2016		2015

				 GH¢		GH¢
Financial assets
Loans to customers
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

19

22,810,589

27,265,208

26

7,551,542

10,549,539

iii. Liquidity reserves
The table below sets out the components of the Company’s liquidity reserves.
Carrying
Fair value
Carrying
amount		amount
2016
2016
2015
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢

Fair value
2015
GH¢

Cash and balances
with other banks

10,271,751

10,271,751

7,498,465

7,498,465

Other cash and cash
equivalents
Total liquidity reserves

22,047,992

22,047,992

5,617,492

5,617,492

32,319,743

32,319,743

13,115,957

13,115,957

iv. Financial assets available to support future funding
The table below sets out the availability of the Company’s financial assets to support future funding.
Note

Encumbered

Unencumbered

31 December 2016
				Total
		GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities

16
17

9,976,343
‑
9,976,343

22,343,400
45,295,441
67,638,841

32,319,743
45,295,441
77,615,184

31 December 2015
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities

16
17

7,899,350
‑
7,899,350

5,216,607
25,992,859
31,209,466

13,115,957
25,992,859
39,108,816

Encumbered represents mandatory reserve requires to be maintained by the Company based on the
Central Bank’s requirements See Note 16.
v. Financial assets pledged as collateral
The Company did not have financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilities at the reporting date  
(2015: Nil).
Financial assets are pledged as collateral as part of securitisation transactions under terms that are
usual and customary for such activities.
(C) Market risk
For the definition of market risk and information on the metrics (and their limitations) used by the
Company to manage the market risks of non‑trading portfolios, See Notes 36 (D).
The table below sets out the allocation of assets and liabilities subject to market risk.
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Note		
31 December 2016			
Carrying
			Amount

Market risk measure
Non‑trading
portfolios

GH¢

GH¢

16
17
18
19

32,319,743
45,295,441
3,663,269
86,641,194

32,319,743
45,295,441
3,663,269
86,641,194

24
26

124,704,293
19,630,975

124,704,293
19,630,975

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Loans to customers
Liabilities subject to market risk

16
17
19

13,115,957
25,992,859
89,684,649

13,115,957
25,992,859
89,684,649

Customers deposits
Borrowings

24
26

98,741,874
16,828,172

98,741,874
16,828,172

Assets subject to market risk			
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Due from related party
Loans to customers
Liabilities subject to market risk
Customers deposits
Borrowings
31 December 2015
Assets subject to market risk

The following is a summary of the Company’s interest rate gap position on non‑trading portfolios.
		
Note
Carrying
			
amount
			 GH¢
31 December 2016

Less than
1 month
GH¢

1‑3
months
GH¢

3 months
to 1 year
GH¢

1‑ 5
year
GH¢

32,319,743
25,574,772
3,663,269
14,064,367
75,622,151
(113,383,620)

‑
19,720,669
‑
31,269,572
50,990,241
(4,760,293)

‑
‑
‑
18,496,666
18,496,666
(6,560,380)

‑
‑
‑
22,810,589
22,810,589
‑

Cash and cash equivalent
Investment securities
Due from related party
Loans customers

16
17
18
19

Customers deposits

24

32,319,743
45,295,441
3,663,269
86,641,194
167,919,647`
(124,704,293)

Borrowings

26

(19,630,975)

(2,038,633)

(8,040,800)

(2,000,000)

(7,551,542)

(144,335,268)

(115,422,253)

(12,801,093)

(8,560,380)

(7,551,542)

23,584,379

(39,800,102)

38,189,148

9,936,286

15,259,047

Total interest repricing gap
31 December 2015
Cash and cash equivalent

16

13,115,957

13,115,957

‑

‑

‑

Investment securities

17

25,992,859

20,783,837

5,209,022

‑

‑

Due from related party

18

3,663,269

3,663,269

‑
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Loans to customers

19

Customers deposits

24

Borrowings

26

Total liabilities
Total interest repricing gap		

89,684,649

132,456,734

12,677,852 31,496,400 18,245,189 27,265,208

50,240,915

(98,741,874)

(94,204,304)

(16,828,172)

36,705,422 18,245,189 27,265,208
(2,023,070)

(2,514,500)

‑

(38,633)

‑

(6,240,000)

(10,549,539)

(115,570,046)

(94,242,937)

(2,023,070)

(8,754,500)

(10,549,539)

16,886,688

(44,002,022)

34,682,352

9,490,689

16,715,669

i. Exposure to interest rate risk – non‑trading portfolios
The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring
sensitivity of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non‑standard
interest rate scenarios.  Standard scenarios that are considered on a monthly basis include a 50 basis
point (bp) parallel fall or rise in market interest rates.
An increase of a 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have impacted equity
and profit / (loss) by the amounts shown below:
Sensitivity of projected net interest income
						
2016
						GH¢
At 31 December
117,922
Sensitivity of reported equity to interest rate movements

2015
GH¢
84,433

At 31 December

63,325

88,441

Interest rate movements affect reported equity in the following ways:
retained earnings – increases or decreases in net interest income and the effect of income tax (25%)
and National  Stabilisation Levy (5% of accounting profit) reported in profit or loss;
Overall non‑trading interest rate risk positions are managed by Treasury, which uses investment
securities and customer deposits to manage the overall position arising from the Company’s
non‑trading activities.
A decrease of a 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the amount shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
ii. Exposure to currency risk – non‑trading portfolios
As at the reporting date net currency exposures for major currencies of the Company are as follows:
				USD
				 GH¢
31 December 2016
Net foreign currency exposure:

GBP
GH¢

EURO
GH¢

Total
GH¢

Assets				
11,015,718
410,860
7,338 11,433,916
Liabilities				‑	‑	‑	‑
Net balance sheet position
11,015,718
410,860
7,338 11,433,916
31 December 2015
Net foreign currency exposure:
Assets
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15,252,359

48,107

3,207

15,303,673

Liabilities				‑	‑	‑	‑
Net on balance sheet position
15,252,359
48,107
3,207 15,303,673

The following mid inter‑bank exchange rates were applied during the year:
		
GH¢ to			
USD 1
GBP 1
EURO 1

Average rate		
Reporting rate
2016
2015		 2016
2015
3.9233
3.7021
4.2002
3.7941
5.2740
5.7025
5.1965
5.6921
4.3237
4.1383
4.4367
4.1244

A 5% weakening of the Cedi against foreign currencies at 31 December 2016 would have impacted
equity and profit / (loss) by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.
			 2016			2015
Assets
Liabilities
Total
Assets Liabilities
Total
Profit/(Loss)

571,696

‑

571,696

765,184

‑

765,184

A best case scenario 5% strengthening of the Ghana Cedi against foreign currencies at 31 December
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the amount shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.
(D) Capital management
i. Regulatory capital
The Company’s regulator, the Bank of Ghana sets and monitors capital requirements for the Company
as a whole. In implementing current capital requirements, the Bank of Ghana requires the Company
to maintain a prescribed ratio of total capital to total risk‑weighted assets.
The Company’s regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:
Tier 1 capital, also referred to as core/primary capital is made up of equity and disclosed reserves.
Equity includes issued and fully paid ordinary share capital and perpetual non‑cumulative preference
shares. Disclosed reserves relate to those created or increased by appropriation of after tax retained
earnings/surplus, retained profits and general statutory reserves and does not include regulatory
credit risk reserve.
Tier 2 capital, also referred to as supplementary/secondary capital includes revaluations reserves,
latent revaluation reserves and hybrid capital instruments. Latent revaluation reserves relate to
unrealised gains on equity instruments classified as available‑for‑sale.
Various limits are applied to elements of the capital base. The qualifying tier 2 capital cannot exceed
tier 1 capital.
Risk‑weighted assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the
varying levels of risk attached to assets and off‑balance sheet exposures.
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of
capital on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Company recognises the need to maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position.
The Company complied with the statutory capital requirements throughout the period.  There have
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been no material changes in the Company’s management of capital during this period.
The capital adequacy ratio is the quotient of the capital base of the Company and the Company’s
risk‑weighted asset base. In accordance with Central Bank of Ghana regulations, a minimum ratio of
10% is to be maintained.
The table below summarizes the composition of regulatory capital and ratios of the Company.

						
			
Note
2016
2015
				
GH¢
GH¢
Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share capital
29(a)
18,637,520
18,637,520
Disclosed reserves			
Statutory reserve
Deposit for shares
Retained earnings
Total disclosed reserve

29 (b)
29 (b)
29 (b)

Total qualifying tier 1 capital
Less:

7,687,438
‑
4,254,070
11,941,508

4,907,111
3,005,575
1,718,615
9,631,301

30,579,028

28,268,821

Intangibles (prepayments)
23
3,700,643
2,822,929
Net tier 1 capital
26,878,385
25,445,892
Tier 2 capital				‑	‑
Total adjusted regulatory capital base
26,878,385
25,445,892
192,054,706

Total assets (less contra items)
Less:

155,309,344

Cash on hand (Cedi)
1,514,153
1,485,583
Cash on hand (forex)				‑	‑
Claims on Bank of Ghana:
i. Cedi clearing account balance
Total claims on Bank of Ghana
Balance carried forward
Balance brought forward
Claims on Government:

16, 23

i.    Treasury securities (bills and bonds)
80% of cheques drawn on other banks
Intangibles (prepayments)
80% of claims on Other Banks in Cedi/forex
Adjusted total assets
50% of net open position (NOP)
100% of 3yrs average annual gross income
Total risk weighted assets base
Capital adequacy ratio (adjusted regulatory capital
base as percentage of  risk weighted assets base)
Capital surplus
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23

26,158

14,607

26,158
190,514,395
190,514,395

14,607
153,809,154
153,809,154

‑

1,002,375

20,926
3,700,643
60,859,898
125,932,928
‑
55,272,805
181,205,733

11,686
2,822,929
29,285,001
120,687,163
‑
46,747,458
167,434,621

14.83%

15.20%

8,757,812

8,702,430

ii. Capital allocation
The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven by
optimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to each
operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capital, but in some cases the regulatory
requirements do not reflect fully the varying degree of risk associated with different activities. In such
cases the capital requirements may be flexed to reflect differing risk profiles, subject to the overall
level of capital to support a particular operation or activity not falling below the minimum required
for regulatory purposes. The process of allocating capital to specific operations and activities is
undertaken independently of those responsible for the operation, by the Company’s Risk Management
and Credit Administration Units, and is subject to review by the Company’s Credit Committee or
ALCO as appropriate.
Although maximisation of the return on risk‑adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining
how capital is allocated within the Company to particular operations or activities, it is not the sole basis
used for decision making. Account also is taken of synergies with other operations and activities, the
availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with the Company’s longer
term strategic objectives.
The Company’s policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by
the Board of Directors.
6. Fair values of financial instruments
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (g) (vi).
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based
on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Company
determines fair values using other valuation techniques.
For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is
less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, concentration,
uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.
(a) Valuation models
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.
Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with
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similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk‑free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads
and other premia used in estimating discount rates.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price
that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the need for management
judgement and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with determining fair values.
Availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and markets
and is prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value – fair value hierarchy
At the reporting date, the Company did not carry financial instruments that are measured at fair value.
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and
analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is
categorised.
31 December 2016

Note

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

16
17
18
19

‑
‑
‑
‑
‑

32,319,743
45,295,441
3,663,269
86,641,194
167,919,647

‑
‑
‑
‑
‑

32,319,743
45,295,441
3,663,269
86,641,194
167,919,647

24
26

‑
‑
‑

124,704,293
19,630,975
144,335,268

‑
‑
‑

124,704,293
19,630,975
144,335,268

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Held‑to‑maturity investment securities
Due from related party
Loans to customers
Liabilities
Customers deposits
Borrowings

7. Net interest income				
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (b).
2016
				GH¢
Interest income
Individual loans
7,874,279
Group loans
17,822,606
Susu loans
1,738,609
SME loans
15,604,128
Agric loans
4,100,999
Adehye loans
11,291,271
Ahoto housing loans
474,131
Others
812,855
Total interest income
59,718,878
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2015
GH¢
7,357,225
17,152,041
1,309,074
12,055,212
3,304,704
10,481,671
39,333
327,284
52,026,544

Interest expense
Savings  
Fixed deposits
Borrowings
Total interest expense
Net interest income

2,223,085
4,796,501
4,211,120
11,230,706
48,488,172

1,242,325
1,737,014
4,260,488
7,239,827
44,786,717

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (c). See accounting policy in Note: 38.
2016
				
GH¢

2015
GH¢

8. Other operating income
Interest on accounts with local banks
Interest on call account
Interest on investments
Money transfer commissions
Fees and commissions

64,550
1,226,543
9,456,482
547,362
1,189,355
12,484,292

70,311
842,366
5,031,758
300,423
1,247,357
7,492,215

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (a), (g) (iii).
2016
				
GH¢

2015
GH¢

9. Other income

Deferred grant released (Note 27)
Net exchange gains
Profit on disposal of property and equipment (Notes 20 (b))
Sundry income

913,441
885,334
125,160
533,230
2,457,165

3,223,470
538,930
95,001
661,615
4,519,016

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (i).
2016
				GH¢

2015
GH¢

10. Net impairment losses on financial assets
Specific impairment (reversal)/loss
Collective impairment loss
Other receivables
Direct write off
Net impairment loss on financial assets

2,202,723
226,751
840,473
‑
3,269,947

(477,508)
34,061
51,757
2,754,155
2,362,465

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (o).
2016
				GH¢

2015
GH¢

11. Personnel expenses				
Wages and salaries
Compulsory social security obligations
Contribution to defined contribution plan
Other staff cost

14,671,391
1,747,911
1,357,811
7,822,718
25,599,831

16,419,422
1,815,013
1,304,099
7,270,650
26,809,184

Executive director’s emoluments included in personnel expenses amounted to GH¢ 500,183 (2015:
GH¢ 414,004). The number of persons employed by the Company at the end of the year was 700
(2015: 768).
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12. Occupancy costs
This represents cost of the Company’s office occupations and its occupancy related expenses.
13. Other expenses
See accounting policy in Note: 38.
2016
				
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Advertising and marketing expenses
1,045,830
Administrative expenses
16,318,879
Technical and management fees
1,865,595
Directors’ emoluments and expenses (non‑executive)
246,000
Professional expenses
736,366
Auditors’ remuneration
259,875
Donations and sponsorship
65,049
				20,537,594

802,901
14,243,538
3,372,807
220,514
415,950
225,000
48,376
19,329,086

An amount of GH¢ 65,049 (2015: GH¢ 48,376) was spent as part of social responsibility of the
Company.
14. Income tax expense

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (f).
2016
				
GH¢
Amounts recognised in statement of comprehensive income
Current year income tax ‑ See Note (a) below

2,489,087

466,801

318,468

1,017,103

2,807,555

1,483,904

Payments
during the year
GH¢

Charge for
the year
GH¢

Balance at
31/12/2016
GH¢

Deferred tax charge/(recovery) ‑ See Notes 22 (a)

(a) Income tax
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (f).Balance at

		
1/1/2016
		
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Income tax
2012‑2014

‑

15,867

(15,867)

‑

2015

‑

‑

‑

‑

2016

‑

(1,334,027)

2,064,488

730,461

‑

(1,318,160)

2,048,621

730,461

2014

(68,997)

‑

‑

(68,997)

2015

163,799

(94,802)

‑

68,997

2016

‑

(196,260)

440,466

244,206

94,802

(291,062)

440,466

244,206

94,802

(1,609,222)

2,489,087

974,667

National stabilisation levy

Total

Tax payments is made of cash payments of GH¢ 886,913 and utilisation of tax credit of GH¢ 722,309.
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(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2016
2016
2015
		
		%

2015
GH¢

GH¢

%

25.00

2,092,052

25.00

838,094

National stabilisation levy

5.00

418,410

5.00

167,619

Non‑deductible expenses

(0.14)

(11,563)

(22.34)

(748,859)

Tax incentives

(1.51)

(126,277)

(2.66)

(89,235)

3.81

318,468

30.34

1,017,103

Under/(over) provided in prior years

(0.19)

(15,867)

8.92

299,182

Tax expenses

31.97

2,675,223

44.26

1,483,904

Profit before tax

Income tax using domestic tax rate

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

8,368,209

3,352,377

15. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (g) (ii), (g) (iii).
Note Trading
Design’d
Held‑to‑
Loans &
			
at fair
maturity
receivables
		value			
cost
			GH¢
GH¢
GH¢

31 December 2016
Cash and cash

Other
amort’d
amount
GH¢

Total
carrying

Fair
value		

GH¢

16

‑

‑

‑

32,319,743

‑ 32,319,743

32,319,743

Investment securities

17

‑

‑ 45,295,441

‑

‑ 45,295,441

44,001,687

Due from related party

18

‑

‑

‑ 3,663,269

‑ 3,663,269

3,663,269

Loans to customers

19

‑

‑

‑

86,641,194

‑ 86,641,194

81,206,182

‑

‑ 45,295,441 122,624,206

‑ 167,919,647

161,190,881
124,704,293

equivalents

Total assets
Customers deposits

24

‑

‑

‑

‑ 124,704,293 124,704,293

Borrowings

26

‑

‑

‑

‑

19,630,975 19,630,975

19,630,975

‑

‑

‑

‑ 144,335,268 144,335,268

144,335,268

Total liabilities
31 December 2015

Cash and cash equivalents

16

‑

‑

‑

13,115,957

‑ 13,115,957

13,115,957

Investment securities

17

‑

‑ 25,992,859

‑

‑ 25,992,859

25,992,859

Due from related party

18

‑

‑

‑ 3,663,269

‑ 3,663,269

3,663,269

Loans to customers

19

‑

‑

‑ 89,684,649

‑ 89,684,649

89,684,649

‑ 25,992,859

106,463,875

‑ 132,456,734

132,456,734

Total assets

‑

Customers deposits

24

‑

‑

‑

‑

98,741,874 98,741,874

98,741,874

Borrowings

26

‑

‑

‑

‑

16,828,172 16,828,172

16,828,172

Total liabilities		

‑

‑

‑

‑ 115,570,046 115,570,046

115,570,046
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16. Cash and cash equivalents

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (h).

2016
						
GH¢

Cash on hand
Balances with other local Banks
Items in course of collection
Call account

2015
GH¢

1,514,153

1,485,583

10,271,751

7,498,465

26,158

14,607

20,507,681

4,117,302

32,319,743

13,115,957

The Company is required by the Central Bank to maintain a mandatory ratio of liquid assets to
deposits of 8% (2015: 8%) amounting to GH¢ 9,976,343 (2015: GH¢ 7,899,350). Items in course of
collection are non‑interest‑bearing.
17. Investments securities				
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (j).

2016
						
GH¢

Fixed deposits
Treasury bills
Total

45,295,441
‑
45,295,441

2015
GH¢

24,990,484
1,002,375
25,992,859

Treasury bills are issued by the Government of Ghana and are classified as held to maturity and carried
at amortised cost. At the reporting date, an amount of GH¢ 45,295,441 (2015:GH¢ 25,992,859) of
investment balance was due to mature within the next twelve (12) months.
18. Due from related party
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (i).
At the reporting date, an amount of GH¢ 3,663,269 (2015: GH¢ ‑) representing balance due from
Opportunity Transformation Investments. Also see Note 33(a). The balance at the reporting date is
due within the next twelve (12) months.
19. Loans to customers

See accounting policy in Notes 38 (i).

2016
						
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Loans to customers at amortised cost

91,741,758

92,355,739

Less allowance for impairment

(5,100,564)

(2,671,090)

Loans to customers at amortised cost

86,641,194

89,684,649

(a) Loans to customers at amortised cost
Gross		Impairment
amount
allowance
2016
2016

Individual customers

Carrying
amount
2015

Gross Impairment
amount
allowance
2015
2015

Carrying
amount
2015

81,918,169

(3,928,058)

77,990,111

74,580,494

(2,067,883)

72,512,611

9,823,589

(1,172,506)

8,651,083

17,775,245

(603,207)

17,172,038

91,741,758

(5,100,564)

86,641,194

92,355,739

(2,671,090)

89,684,649

Small/Medium
Enterprise (SME) loans
Total loans to customers
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(b) Allowances for impairment
						
2016

						
GH¢

2015
GH¢

2,075,579
2,202,723
4,278,302

2,553,087
(477,508)
2,075,579

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Balance at 31 December

595,511
226,751
822,262

561,450
34,061
595,511

Total allowances for impairment

5,100,564

2,671,090

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge/(reversal) for the year
Balance at 31 December

Collective allowances for impairment

20. Property and equipment
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (k).
Renov’n Furniture Equipm’ts
Motor
Capital
Total
		& reconst’n & fittings		
vehicles
work in		
						
progress
		GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢

Cost

Balances at 1 January 2015
Acquisitions
Transfers
Reclassifications **
Disposals
Write‑offs

4,133,412 2,308,343 9,055,707 4,122,853 4,082,965
15,032 479,127 1,024,310 904,370 1,526,359
776,036
84,597
920,210
211,774 (2,024,539)
‑
‑
‑
‑ (230,824)
‑ (72,738) (189,504) (312,418)
‑
‑
‑
‑
‑
(16,925)

23,703,280
3,949,198
(31,922)
(230,824)
(574,660)
(16,925)

Balance at 31 December 2015		 4,924,480 2,799,329 10,810,723 4,926,579 3,337,036
Balance at 1 January 2016
4,924,480 2,799,329 10,810,723 4,926,579 3,337,036
Acquisitions ***
75,393 222,573 1,109,450 674,710
109,332
Transfers
58,376
608
610,924
‑ (3,263,936)
Disposals
‑ (21,488) (133,319) (134,819)
‑

26,798,147
26,798,147
2,191,458
(2,594,028)
(289,626)

Balance at 31 December 2016		 5,058,249 3,001,022 12,397,778 5,466,470
Depreciation

182,432

26,105,951

Balances at 1 January 2015		 1,675,924 1,697,636 4,913,231 1,986,783
Depreciation for the year
413,870 259,785 1,535,871 852,373
Released on disposal
‑ (72,738) (188,553) (125,786)
Balance at 31 December 2015
2,089,794 1,884,683 6,260,549 2,713,370
Balance at 1 January 2016
2,089,794 1,884,683 6,260,549 2,713,370
Depreciation for the year
415,612 310,821 1,700,147 788,204
Released on disposal
‑ (21,488)
(89,603) (115,185)

‑
‑
‑
‑
‑
‑
‑

10,273,574
3,061,899
(387,077)
12,948,396
12,948,396
3,214,784
(226,276)

Balance at 31 December 2016		 2,505,406 2,174,016 7,871,093 3,386,389

‑

15,936,904

610,707 4,142,476 2,136,070 4,082,965
914,646 4,550,174 2,213,209 3,337,036
827,006 4,526,685 2,080,081
182,432

13,429,706
13,849,751
10,169,047

Carrying amounts
Balances at 1 January 2015		 2,457,488
Balance at 31 December 2015 2,834,686
Balance at 31 December 2016		 2,552,843

There were no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of plant and equipment during
the year (2015: Nil).
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**The balance reclassified represents a cost of leasehold land that was purchased in 2014 and
subsequently reversed in 2015 to accounts payable. The Company signed a contract to this effect
and as such, a financial liability existed as at the year ended 2014. The corresponding asset was
capitalised in work in progress pending formalisation of legal title and a corresponding liability
recognised in accounts payable. The Company encountered difficulties with obtaining a legal title
subsequent to the signing of the contract and opted out the transaction.
*** Additions in 2016 is made of cash component of GH¢ 1,773,786 and grants component of GH¢
417,672 (See Note 27).
There were no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of plant and equipment during
the year (2015: Nil).
(a) Depreciation and amortisation expense
2016
						

						
GH¢

Property and equipment (Note 20)
Intangible asset

(Note 21)

3,214,784
809,765
4,024,549

(b) Profit on disposal
						
2016

						
GH¢

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying amount
Proceeds from disposal
Profit on disposal

289,626
(226,276)
63,350
(188,510)
(125,160)

21. Intangible asset
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (l).
						
2016

						
GH¢

Cost
Balance at 1 January
Acquisitions
Write‑offs
Transfers
Balance at 31 December

2015
GH¢

3,061,899
378,127
3,440,026

2015
GH¢

574,660
(387,077)
187,583
(282,584)
(95,001)

2015
GH¢

3,286,795
765,332
(4,720)
2,594,028
6,641,435

3,196,377
58,496
‑
31,922
3,286,795

2,533,628
809,765
(552)
3,342,841

2,155,501
378,127
‑
2,533,628

753,167
3,298,594

1,040,876
753,167

Amortisation
Balance at 1 January
Amortisation for the year
Released on write‑offs
Balance at 31 December
Carrying amount
Balance at 1 January
Balance at 31 December

There were no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of intangible asset during the
year (2015: Nil).
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22. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (f).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
		
Assets Liabilities
2016

Assets Liabilities
2015
				
Net			Net
		GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢
GH¢

Property, equipment and software
Allowances for loan losses
Net tax assets/(liabilities)

‑ (519,309)
205,564
‑
205,564 (519,309)

(519,309)
205,564
(313,745)

‑
315,276
315,276

(310,553)
‑
(310,553)

(310,553)
315,276
4,723

(a) Movements in temporary differences during the year
Balance at 1 Recogn’d in
		
January
profit and
			loss
		 GH¢
GH¢

Property, equipment and software
Allowances for loan losses

(310,553)
315,276

(208,756)
(109,712)

Recogn’d in
comprehensive
income
GH¢

‑
‑

Balance at
31 December
GH¢

(519,309)

4,723

(318,468)

‑

205,564
(313,745)

716,263
305,563
1,021,826

(1,026,816)
9,713
(1,017,103)

‑
‑
‑

(310,553)
315,276
4,723

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Property, equipment and software
Allowances for loan losses

Recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets
Recognition of deferred tax assets of  GH¢ ‑ (2015: GH¢ 4,723) is based on management’s profit
forecasts (which are based on the available evidence, including historical levels of profitability), which
indicates that it is probable that the Company will have future taxable profits against which these
assets can be utilised.
23. Other assets						

						
2016

						
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Prepayments ‑ lease
Other prepayments
Western Union Money Transfer payments
Accrued interest receivable
MTN Mobile Money
Moneygram payments
Inventories
Others

2,283,558
1,417,085
125,525
6,470,111
522,802
138,791
200,060
1,015,560
12,173,492

1,938,787
884,142
310,835
3,187,747
339,595
569,664
117,786
1,562,014
8,910,570

Impairment allowance for interest receivables

(1,506,074)
10,667,418
8,776,375
1,891,043
10,667,418

(665,601)
8,244,969
6,777,407
1,467,562
8,244,969

Current
Non‑current
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24. Customer deposits
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (n).
Current accounts
Regular savings
Staff savings
Susu savings
Fixed term deposits
Special savings
Compulsory savings
Ratio of 20 largest depositors to total deposits

24,066,724
55,085,806
328,247
5,494,337
24,176,519
2,541
15,550,119
124,704,293
0.15%

18,483,022
47,385,995
316,290
5,680,356
12,582,554
4,508
14,289,149
98,741,874
0.12%

With the exception of Susu Loan clients, all loan clients are required to accumulate at least 10% of
the amount of loan applied for as Compulsory Savings at the time of loan disbursement. This is to
promote savings culture among micro borrowers and also to serve as additional collateral against
loan defaults. There are restrictions on the ability of a borrower to draw on their savings. As at 31
December 2016 there were 470,880 voluntary savers (2015: 447,308).
25. Bank overdraft
The Company has the following unsecured overdraft facilities with local banks at the reporting date:
Limit						
2016
						
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Ecobank Ghana Ltd. (Base rate+2%, pa subject to periodic review).
Expired on 30 September 2016 and secured by an undertaking to
maintain an investment balance of not less than GH¢ 800,000.

‑

3,000,000

Ecobank Ghana Ltd. (credit card line at 5.833% pa). Expired on  
30 September 2016.

‑

94,853

CAL Bank Limited (at the Bank’s Cedi Base rate of 29.5% p.a.).  
Expires on 19 February 2017 and secured by a negative pledge.
Total facility limit and amount unutilised

3,000,000

-

3,000,000

3,094,853

26. Borrowings						
						
2016
See accounting policy in Note: 38  and (o).
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Borrowings at amortised cost comprise of:
Falling due within 1 year
Falling due after 1 year
Reconciliation of borrowing balance
Balance at 1 January
Additions during the year
Repayments during the year
Conversion from/(to) deposit for shares/equity
Conversion to grant
Fair value of equity portion of borrowings recognised in the year
Unwinding of interest
Exchange difference
Balance at 31 December
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12,079,433
7,551,542
19,630,975

6,278,633
10,549,538
16,828,171

16,828,172
8,574,729
25,402,901
(7,906,666)
3,005,574
‑
(1,068,973)
198,139
‑
19,630,975

20,336,697
3,000,000
23,336,697
(3,608,633)
(1,190,292)
(2,365,398)
‑
105,937
549,861
16,828,172

Lender		 Amount
Grant
Maturity Contr’l
		
(‘000)
date
date interest
					
rate
Agro Eco‑Louis Bolk Institute
USD25 18/11/2011 18/11/2012 12.50%
Revolving
Wholesale Microfinance
GHS 2,000 27/07/2011 27/01/2017 15.00%
Wholesale Microfinance
GHS 2,000 31/12/2014 24/12/2017 27.72%
Symbiotics SA
GHS 8,122 16/11/2016 16/11/2017 24.50%
Oikocredit
GHS 5,000 29/10/2014 28/10/2019 22.77%
Responsability
GHS 6,240 19/09/2013 19/09/2016 21.25%
Opportunity International‑UK
GHS 3,005 01/08/2016 01/08/2018
‑%
Opportunity International‑UK
GHS 534 03/11/2016 03/11/2018
‑%

27. Grants

See accounting
policy in Notes
38 (d).
Bal at 1 Jan.

Balance
at 2016
GH¢
38,633

Balance
at 2015
GH¢
38,633

2,000,000
2,000,000
8,040,800
4,882,873
‑
2,136,993
531,676
19,630,975

2,000,000
2,000,000
‑
6,549,539
6,240,000
‑
‑
16,828,172

John
Deere
GH¢

2016
GH¢

2015
GH¢

‑

2,849,028

1,803,340

147,116 1,453,899 557,590

3,993,608

4,269,158

566,604 2,170,628 1,069,178 1,453,899 557,590

6,842,636

6,072,498

CIDA
GH¢

Gates/
Master
Card

1,024,737

455,825

Funds received

‑
1,024,737

Rel’d to income
Bal at 31 Dec.

446,404

922,062

110,779 1,724,224

(370,181) (199,203)
654,556

OI ‑ UK WEBERG
OI US
Project
GH¢
Project
GH¢		 GH¢

(181,200)

(75,801)

367,401 1,989,428

‑

(87,056)

‑

993,377 1,366,843 557,590

(913,441) (3,223,470)
5,929,195

2,849,028

Funds received in the year is made of cash component of GH¢ 3,575,936 and equipment component of GH¢
417,672. Grants are for specific capital assets and amortised over the useful lives of those assets.
28. Other liabilities							
See accounting policy in Note: 38  and (o).

2016
							
GH¢

2015
GH¢

Loans drawdown
Interest payable
Accrued expenses
Other payables

16,273
2,066,076
2,111,567
3,265,112

62,745
1,654,109
2,005,159
3,655,077

Current
Non‑current

7,459,028
7,459,028
‑
7,459,028

7,377,090
7,377,090
‑
7,377,090

29. Capital and reserves
See accounting policy in Notes 38 (p)
(a) Share capital					

2016
					
No. of
					Shares

2016
Proceeds
GH¢

2015
No. of
Shares

2015
Proceeds
GH¢

      1,000,000,000

‑

1,000,000,000

‑

Authorised
Ordinary Shares of no par value

Issued and fully paid
Issued for cash consideration
Issued for consideration other than cash
Issued for cash consideration

176,646,823 17,664,682
9,728,370
972,837
186,375,193 18,637,519

176,646,823 17,664,682
9,728,370
972,837
186,375,193 18,637,519
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Reconciliation of stated capital
Balance at 1 January
Transferred from deposits for shares
Balance at 31 December

186,375,193 18,637,519
‑
‑
186,375,193 18,637,519

153,967,247 15,396,724
32,407,946 3,240,795
186,375,193 18,637,519

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained earnings
This represents the residual of cumulative annual profits that are available for distribution to
shareholders.
Statutory reserve
This represents amounts set aside as a non‑distributable reserve from annual profits in accordance
with section 29 of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking Amendment Act,
2007 (Act 738) and guidelines from the Central Bank.
Credit risk reserve
This is a reserve created to set aside the excess between amounts recognized as impairment loss on
loans based on provisions made for bad and doubtful loans and advances calculated in accordance
with IFRS and the Central Bank’s prudential guidelines.
Other reserve
This represents the excess of borrowing proceeds over fair value measurement of borrowings
obtained from related parties at concessionary interest rates.
Deposit for shares
Deposits for shares relates to funds deposited by some existing shareholders in respect of share offer
from the Company.
30. Dividends
The Company did not declare dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
31. Leasing
The Company leases various offices, branches and other premises under non cancelable operating
lease arrangements. The lease rentals are paid in advance and amortised on a straight line basis over
the lease period. The outstanding balance is accounted for as a prepayment in other assets. There
were no contingent rents payable.
Non cancelable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
							
2016

							
GH¢

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

392,515
1,582,177
308,866
2,283,558

2015
GH¢

471,225
1,130,641
336,921
1,938,787

32. Contingencies
(a) Claims and litigations
Litigation and claims involving the Company amounted to GH¢ 441,100 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).
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(b) Contingent liabilities and commitments
The conduct of the Company’s business does not involve acceptance and performance bonds and
indemnities.
(c) Commitments for capital expenditure
At 31 December 2016, the Company’s commitment for capital expenditure was GH¢ Nil‑ (2015: GH¢
347,350).
33. Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
influence over the other party in making financial and operational decisions, or one other party controls
both. The definition includes members of the Opportunity Transformation Investments Group.
(a) Parent and associated companies
The parent company, which is also the ultimate parent company, is Opportunity Transformation
Investments (OTI). Transactions between OTI and the subsidiaries also meet the definition of related
party transactions. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company transacted the following
business with the parent and associated companies:
i. Transactions with associated companies during the year were:
Associated company				
Nature of transaction
2016
2015
				
		GH¢
GH¢
Opportunity Transformation Investments

    OI network expenses

55,372

127,723

Opportunity Transformation Investments

OI network subscription

1,865,595

781,823

Opportunity Transformation Investments

               Technical management fee

‑

2,590,984

1,920,967

3,500,530

ii Balances with associated companies as at the reporting period were:
Also see See Note 26 for related party borrowing balances.
Associated company				
Nature of transaction
2016
2015
		GH¢
GH¢
Opportunity Transformation Investments

     Advances receivable

3,663,269

3,663,269

(b) Transactions with key management personnel

The Company’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered
to be related parties for disclosure purposes. The definition of key management includes the close
members of family of key personnel and any entity over which key management exercise control. The
key management personnel have been identified as the executive and non executive directors of the
Company.  Close members of family are those family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by that individual in their dealings with Opportunity Transformation Investments.
Key management personnel and their immediate relatives have the following outstanding loan
balances with the Company at the reporting period:
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2016
							
GH¢

Executive officers
Officers and other employees

2015
GH¢

222,330

256,101

4,715,598

6,368,431

4,937,928

6,624,532

(c) Shareholders
		
No Name
		

2016		
2015
No. of
Holding (%)
No. of
shareholding		shareholding

1.    Opportunity Transformation
Investment Inc.
2.   OIKOCREDIT UA
3.   Sinapi Aba Trust
4.   Opportunity Microfinance
Investment Ltd.
5.   Elaine McKay
6.   Opportunity International ‑ Canada
7.   Inter‑church Organisation for
Dev’t Co‑op
8.   Others

141,551,784

75.9499

131,823,419

70.7301

14,633,653
‑
10,497,686

7.8517
‑
5.6326

14,633,653
9,728,365
10,497,686

7.8517
5.2198
5.6326

4,041,549
11,791,997
1,559,144

2.1685
6.3270
0.8366

4,041,549
11,791,997
1,559,144

2.1685
6.3270
0.8366

2,299,380

1.2337

2,299,380

1.2337

Total

186,375,193

100.000

186,375,193

100.000

Holding (%)

34. Comparative information
The comparative information have been reclassified, where applicable, to conform to the current
year’s presentation.
35. Subsequent events
Events subsequent to the reporting date are reflected in the financial statements only to the extent
that they relate to the year under consideration and the effect is material. There were no subsequent
events at the reporting date and at 31 December 2015.
36. Financial risk management
(A) Introduction and overview
The Company’s activities expose the business to risks.  These risks are managed professionally and
in a targeted manner.  Key risks arising from core functions are identified and measured to facilitate
managing and determining risk positions and capital allocations.  The Company has exposure to the
following types of risks from its use of financial instruments:
•   credit risk
•   liquidity risk
•   market risks
•   operational risks
The Company continues to assess its overall risk management framework and governance structure.  
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s
management of capital.
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i. Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework.   The Risk Management Committee of the Board is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies over specified areas.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze risks faced by the
Company, set appropriate risks limits and controls and monitor risks and adherence to established
policies.  Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions, products and services offered.  Through training and setting of standards and procedures,
the Company has developed a disciplined and reasonably effective control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Company’s Risk Management Committee of the Board is responsible for monitoring compliance
with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to risks faced by the Company.
(B) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s loans
to customers and investment securities. For risk management reporting purposes, the Company
considers all elements of credit risk exposure.
i. Settlement risk
The Company’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions and trade.
Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a company to honour its obligations to deliver
cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed.
For certain types of transactions, the Company mitigates this risk by conducting settlements through
a clearing agent (the Company’s bankers) to ensure that a transaction is settled only when both
parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement obligations.
ii. Management of credit risk
The Company structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or group of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such risks are
monitored on a revolving basis and subject to annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of
credit risk by product and industry sector are approved by the Board of Directors. Actual exposures
against limits are monitored daily.
The Company employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of
these is the taking of security for funds advances, which is common practice. The Company reviews
the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types
for loans are:
Compulsory savings;
Mortgages over residential properties; and
Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable.
(C) Liquidity risk
‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
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i. Management of liquidity risk
The Company defines liquidity risks as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial
assets. The Company maintains liquidity limit imposed by its local regulator, Bank of Ghana and
the overall liquidity has always been within the regulatory limit of Bank of Ghana. ALCO monitors
compliance of all branches to ensure that the Company maintains optimum liquid assets.   The
Company aims to be in a position to meet all obligations, repay depositors, fulfil commitments to lend
and meet any other commitments.
ALCO receives information from branches regarding the liquidity profile of their financial assets and
liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future business. Treasury unit
then maintains a portfolio of short‑term liquid assets, largely made up of short‑term liquid investment
securities and loans, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Company.
All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by ALCO. Daily reports on the
liquidity position of the Company is submitted to senior management and summary report, including
any exceptions and remedial action taken, is submitted regularly to ALCO on monthly basis.
(D) Market risks
‘Market risk’ is the risk that changes in market prices – such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit standing) – will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
the Company’s market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters to ensure the Company’s solvency while optimising the return on risk.
i. Management of market risks
The Company recognizes market risk as the exposure created by potential changes in market prices
and rates, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates.  The Company’s exposure to market
risk arises principally from customer driven transactions.
Overall authority for market risk is vested in the ALCO. The Risk Management unit is responsible for
the development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by the Board’s
Risk Committee) and for the day‑to‑day review of their implementation.
ii. Exposure to other market risks – Non‑trading portfolios
The principal risk to which non‑trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in
the future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest
rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having
pre‑approved limits for repricing bands. Risk Management unit is the monitoring body for compliance
with these limits and is assisted by Treasury in its day‑to‑day monitoring activities.
(E) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the Company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the
Company’s operations. The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the
avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness
and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for
the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management within each business unit.

60 Opportunity International Savings and loans Annual Report 2016

The Company’s Compliance Unit is responsible for establishing and maintaining an appropriate
framework of the Company’s compliance policies and procedures. This responsibility is supported
by the development of overall Company standards for the management of operational risk in the
following areas:
•  requirements for appropriate segregation of duties,
•  including the independent authorisation of transactions;
•  requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
•  compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
•  documentation of controls and procedures;
•  requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls                                                                                                     
    and procedures to address the risks identified;
•  requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
•  development of contingency plans;
•  training and professional development;
•  ethical and business standards; and
•  risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
37. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following
material items.
Items					Measurement basis
Non‑derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss      Fair value

38. Summary significant accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these  financial statements.
Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on
the pages that follow.
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)
(k)
(l)
(m)
(n)
(o)
(p)

Foreign currency transaction
Interest income and expense
Fee and commission income
Grants
Leases
Income tax
Financial assets and financial liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Investment securities
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Impairment of non‑financial assets
Deposits and debt securities
Employee benefits
Stated capital and reserves

60
60
60
61
62
64
67
68
68
69
70
71
71
72
72

(a) Foreign currency transaction
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re‑translated at closing inter‑bank
mid rates ruling at the reporting date.  Non‑monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates of initial recognition.  
Non‑monetary items denominated in a foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated
at exchange rates ruling at the date when fair value was determined.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and
from re‑translation at year‑end exchange rates of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences on translation of equity investments
in respect of which an election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair value and
differences arising on translation of available‑for‑sale equity investments in other comprehensive
income.
All foreign exchange gains and losses recognized in profit or loss are presented net within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive income items are
presented in other comprehensive income within the corresponding item.
(b) Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.  When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, including prepayment options, but does not consider future credit losses.  The calculation
includes all transaction costs, fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.
Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
(c) Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the related services are performed.  
Loan commitment fees for loans that are not likely to be drawn down are deferred, together with
related direct costs and recognized on a straight line basis over the commitment period.  Fees and
commission expenses, which relate mainly to transaction and service fees, are expensed as the
related services are received.
(d) Grants
Grants and donations for operations in current year are recorded in the statement of comprehensive
income as part of other operating income. Grants and donations beyond the current operating period
are recorded under liabilities as deferred grants. Capital grants are recorded in the statement of
financial position as deferred liabilities and an amount equal to the depreciation is transferred to the
statement of comprehensive income over the useful lives of the assets.
(e) Leases
Minimum lease payments under finance leases are apportioned between finance expense and the
outstanding lease liability.   The finance expense is allocated to each period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the underlying asset are classified as finance leases.  Upon initial recognition, the leased asset
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is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and present value of minimum lease
payments.  Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased asset is accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to that asset.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease.  When an operating lease is terminated before the lease has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place. Minimum lease payments under finance leases are apportioned between
finance expense and the outstanding lease liability.  The finance expense is allocated to each period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
i. Recognition
The Company initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All other financial instruments including
regular‑way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
(ii) Classification
Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, held to
maturity, available‑for‑sale or at fair value through profit or loss within the category of held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit or loss. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition See Notes (g), (h), (i) and (j).
Financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments,
as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss See Notes (i), (j) and (n).
(iii) De‑recognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Company
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
(iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
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financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains
and losses arising from a group of similar transactions.
v) Amortised cost measurement
The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial
amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.
(vi) Fair value measurement
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a
liability reflects its non‑performance risk.
When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction
price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company determines that the fair
value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life
of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data
or the transaction is closed out.
If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company
measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.
Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that
are managed by the Company on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are
measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer
a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio‑level adjustments are allocated to
the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual
instruments in the portfolio.
The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from
the first date on which the amount could be required to be paid.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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(vii) Identification and measurement of impairment
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset(s) and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash
flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:
•     significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
•     default or delinquency by a borrower;
•     the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
       consider therwise;
•     indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy;
•     the disappearance of an active market for a security; or
•     observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
       borrowers  or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
       group.
The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held‑to‑maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and a collective level. All individually significant loans
and advances and held‑to‑maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and held‑to‑maturity investment securities that
are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and
advances and held‑to‑maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses statistical modelling of historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an
adjustment if current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or lesser than is suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected
timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they
remain appropriate.
Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost are calculated as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate.
If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the
financial asset should be derecognised. If the cash flows of the renegotiated asset are substantially
different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to
have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and the new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.
The impairment loss before an expected restructuring is measured as follows.
If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the estimated
cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in the measurement of the existing
asset based on their expected timing and amounts discounted at the original effective interest rate
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of the existing financial asset.
If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair
value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of
its derecognition. This amount is discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting
date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans
and receivables or held‑to‑maturity investment securities. Interest on the impaired assets continues
to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. If an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available‑for‑sale investment securities are recognised by reclassifying the
losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any
principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss recognised
previously in profit or loss. Changes in impairment attributable to application of the effective interest
method are reflected as a component of interest income.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available‑for‑sale debt security increases
and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase
in fair value is recognised through OCI. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired
available‑for‑sale equity security is always recognised in OCI.
The Company writes off a loan or an investment debt security, either partially or in full, and any related
allowance for impairment losses, when Company Credit determines that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery and approval for write‑off granted by the Central Bank.
(viii) Designation at fair value through profit or loss
The Company has designated financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
in either of the following circumstances.
The assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
Note 15 sets out the amount of each class of financial asset or financial liability that has been
designated at fair value through profit or loss. A description of the basis for each designation is set
out in the note for the relevant asset or liability class.
h) Cash and cash equivalents
‘Cash and cash equivalents’ include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central
banks and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by
the Company in the management of its short‑term commitments.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.
(i) Other non‑trading derivatives
If a derivative is not held for trading, and is not designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, then all
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changes in its fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss as a component of net income
from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
(i) Loans
‘Loans ’ are non‑derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and that the Company does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term.
Loans and advances are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans to customers include those classified as loans and receivables.
Loans are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. When the Company chooses
to designate the loans as measured at fair value through profit or loss as described in (g) (vii). they are
measured at fair value with face value changes recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Loans also include receivables from related parties.
(j) Investment securities
Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs and
subsequently accounted for depending on their classification as held to maturity, fair value through
profit and loss or available‑for‑sale.
i. Held to maturity
‘Held to maturity’ investments are non‑derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Company has the positive interest and ability to hold to maturity and which are
not designated at fair value through profit or loss or available‑for‑sale.
Held‑to‑maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses (See Notes (g)(vii)). A sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant
amount of held‑to‑maturity investments would result in the reclassification of all held‑to‑maturity
investments as available‑for‑sale, and would prevent the Company from classifying investment
securities as held‑to‑maturity for the current and the following two financial years. However, sales
and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would not trigger a reclassification:
sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the market rate of interest would
not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;
sales or reclassifications after the Company has collected substantially all of the asset’s original
principal; and sales or reclassifications that are attributable to non‑recurring isolated events beyond
the Company’s control that could not have been reasonably anticipated.
ii. Fair value through profit or loss
The Company designates some investment securities at fair value, with fair value changes recognised
immediately in profit or loss as described in ((g)(viii)).
‘Available‑for‑sale investments’ are non‑derivative investments that are designated as available
for‑ sale or are not classified as another category of financial assets. Available‑for‑sale investments
comprise equity securities and debt securities. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot
be measured reliably are carried at cost. All other available‑for‑sale investments are measured at fair
value after initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss when the Company becomes entitled to the dividend (). Foreign exchange
gains or losses on available‑for‑sale debt security investments are recognised in profit or loss (See
Note: (a)). Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss (See Notes (g)(vii)).
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Other fair value changes, other than impairment losses (See Notes (g)(vii)), are recognised in OCI
and presented in the fair value reserve within equity. When the investment is sold, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
A non‑derivative financial asset may be reclassified from the available‑for‑sale category to the loans
and receivables category if it would otherwise have met the definition of loans and receivables and
if the Company has the intention and ability to hold that financial asset for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
(k) Property and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The
cost of selfconstructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised
borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of that equipment.
When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property and equipment, and is
recognised in other income/other expenses in profit or loss.
ii. Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day‑to‑day servicing of property
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight‑line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property and equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets under finance
leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
The estimated useful lives for the current and corresponding periods are as follows:
Equipments     

5 years

Computers hardware

5 years

Furniture and fittings

5 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

		Capitalised renovation expenses 		 10 years

(l) Intangible assets
Computer software
Software acquired by the Company is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
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impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. Amortisation is recognised in the
income statement on a straight‑line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date
that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software is five years.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year‑end and
adjusted if appropriate.
(m) Impairment of non‑financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non‑financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash‑generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. A cash‑generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset that generates cash flows that are
largely independent from other assets. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash‑generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre‑tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
The Company did not hold such assets at the reporting date.
(n) Deposits and debt securities
Deposits and borrowings are the Company’s sources of debt funding. The Company classifies capital
instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual terms of the instrument.
Deposits and borrowings are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where the Company
chooses to carry the liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
(o) Employee benefits
i. Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post‑employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
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employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.
ii. Provident fund
The Company has a Provident Fund Scheme for all employees who have completed their probation
period with the Company. Employees contribute 5% of their basic salary to the Fund whilst the
Company contributes 10%. Obligations under the plan are limited to the relevant contributions, which
are settled on due dates to the fund manager.
(p) Stated capital and reserves
i. Share capital
The Company classifies capital and equity instruments in accordance with the contractual terms of
the instrument. The Company’s share capital is not redeemable by holders in the normal course of
business and bears an entitlement to distributions that is non‑cumulative and at the discretion of the
Directors.  Accordingly, they are presented as a component of issued capital within equity.
ii. Share issue costs
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the
initial measurement of the equity instruments.
iii. Dividend on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in the period in which they are approved by the
shareholders. Dividend proposed which is yet to be approved by shareholders, is disclosed by way
of notes.
iv. Statutory reserves
Statutory reserves are based on the requirements of section 29(i) of the Banking Act.  Transfers into
statutory reserves are made in accordance with the relationship between the Company’s reserve
fund and its paid up capital, which determines the proportion of profits for the period that should be
transferred.
v. Credit risk reserves
This is a reserve created to set aside the excess between amounts recognized as impairment loss on
loans and advances based on provisions made for bad and doubtful loans and advances calculated
in accordance with IFRS and the Central Bank’s prudential guidelines.
39. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2016, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective and may have
an impact on future financial statements:
Standard 		Interpretation
IFRS 9
Financial Instruments

On 24 July 2014, the IASB issued the final IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard,
which replaces earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to replace
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
This standard will have a significant impact on the Company, which will include
changes in the measurement bases of the Company’s financial assets to amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or
loss. Even though these measurement categories are similar to IAS 39, the criteria for
classification into these categories are significantly different. In addition, the IFRS 9
impairment model has been changed from an “incurred loss” model from IAS 39 to
an “expected credit loss” model, which is expected to increase the provision for bad
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debts recognised in the Company.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
retrospective application, early adoption is permitted.
The Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements
resulting from the application of IFRS 9. Given the nature of the Company’s operations,
this standard is expected to have a pervasive impact on the Company’s financial
statements. In particular, calculation of impairment of financial instruments on an
expected credit loss basis is expected to result in an increase in the overall level of
impairment allowances.
IFRS 16 ‑ Leases

IFRS 16 was published in January 2016. It sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract,
ie the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (‘lessor’). IFRS 16 replaces the previous
leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. IFRS 16 has one model
for lessees which will result in almost all leases being included on the Statement of
Financial position. No significant changes have been included for lessors.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with early adoption permitted only if the entity also adopts IFRS 15. The transitional
requirements are different for lessees and lessors. The Company is assessing the
potential impact on the financial statements resulting from the application of IFRS 16.

Disclosure Initiative
(Amendments to IAS 7)

The amendments provide for disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flow and non‑cash changes. This includes providing a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities.
The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and
early application is permitted. The Company will not early adopt this amendment.
The potential impact of the amendment on the Bank’s financial statements will be
assessed for implementation.

Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
(IFRS 12)

The amendments provide additional guidance on the existence of deductible
temporary differences, which depend solely on a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected by
possible future changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of
the asset.
The amendments also provide additional guidance on the methods used to calculate
future taxable profit to establish whether a deferred tax asset can be recognised.

Guidance is provided where an entity may assume that it will recover an asset for
more than its carrying amount, provided that there is sufficient evidence that it is
		probable that the entity will achieve this.
Guidance is provided for deductible temporary differences related to unrealised
losses are not assessed separately for recognition. These are assessed on a
combined basis, unless a tax law restricts the use of losses to deductions against
income of a specific type.
The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and
early application is permitted.
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Revenue from
contracts with
customers (IFRS 15)

The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and
two approaches to recognising revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model
features a contract‑based five‑step analysis of transactions to determine whether,
how much and when revenue is recognised.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early adoption permitted.
This new standard will not likely have a significant impact on the Bank.

Classification and
Measurement of
Share‑based Payment
Transactions
(Amendments to
IFRS 2)

Currently, there is ambiguity over how a company should account for certain types
of share‑based payment arrangements. The IASB has responded by publishing
amendments to IFRS 2 Share‑based Payment.
The amendments cover three accounting areas:
Measurement of cash‑settled share‑based payments –The new requirements do not
change the cumulative amount of expense that is ultimately recognised, because the
total consideration for a cash‑settled share‑based payment is still equal to the cash
paid on settlement.
Classification of share‑based payments settled net of tax withholdings –
The amendments introduce an exception stating that, for classification purposes, a
share‑based payment transaction with employees is accounted for as equity‑settled
if certain criteria are met.
Accounting for a modification of a share‑based payment from cash‑settled to
equity‑settled –. The amendments clarify the approach that companies are to apply.
The new requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these
arrangements – and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognised for
new and outstanding awards. The amendments are effective for annual periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2018.
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Geographical Spread & Delivery
Channels
Wide coverage of operations:
Physical Presence in 7 regions out of the 10 regions in Ghana
with:
36 Branches
8 Satellites Branches
4 Mobile Banks
18 ATMs
186 POS (Field and  Branch based)
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Appendix
VALUE ADDED STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
						
Note
							

2016
GH¢

2015
GH¢

72,203,170

59,518,759

(33,151,799)

(27,853,209)

39,051,371

31,665,550

9

2,457,165

4,519,016

10

(3,269,947)

(2,362,465)

Value added							

38,238,589

33,822,101

(246,000)

(220,514)

(500,183)

(414,004)

Other employees

(25,099,648)

(26,395,180)

Total

(25,845,831)

(27,029,698)

(2,807,555)

(1,483,904)

Interest earned and other operating income
Direct cost of services and other costs
Value added by banking services
Non‑banking income
Impairments

Distributed as follows:
To employees
Directors (without executive)

13

Executive director

To Government
Income tax

14

To providers of capital
Dividends to shareholders						‑	‑
To expansion and growth
Depreciation and amortization
Retained earnings
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20(a)

(4,024,549)

(3,440,026)

(5,560,654)

(1,868,473)

Contact and Branches
Abuakwa
Abofour
Accra Central
Ada Kasseh
Akim Oda
Apam
Asafo
Ashaiman
Asiwa

Opposite the Total Filling Station
Next to Goil Filling Station
General Post Office, Near Wato Traffic Lights
Adjacent Al Filling Station
Off Liberty Lorry Station, Opposite the Main Market
Behind Goil Filling Station
Behind Goil Filling Station
Opposite Fire Service
Asiwa Market

Bekwai

Opposite the Government Hospital

Berekum
Bibiani
Bogoso

Behind the Post Office
Near Presbyterian Church
Opposite the Government Hospital

Circle
Dansoman
Datano
Dome
Goaso
Jacobu
Kasoa
Kejetia
Kintampo
Koforidua
Konongo
Lapaz
Madina
Mankessim

026 300 3167
050 145 2991
026 300 3014
030 261 0000
057 229 0778
057 229 0991
034 292 2566
027 409 8849
032 208 3189/91
026 300 3317
026 300 3325
024 355 3252
026 300 3574
026 300 1984
035 222 2270/1
030 393 5605
026 300 8312
026 300 3165

Next to Vodafone

030 225 1888

Agege Last Stop
Adjacent the Police Station
Superbet Building, opposite Dome Market

030 703 8182/3
030 702 0094
026 300 3160

At the main Lorry Station

026 300 3654

Opposite the Market

050 145 2992

Next to Suvinil Paint, Bawjiase Road
Opposite Adehyeman Gardens
Next to Duapa FM
Near Melcom Store
Near Shell Filling Station

026 300 2994/5
032 204 1850
035 219 2212
026 300 3363
026 300 3618

Behind Las Palmas

030 703 8184

Shell Filling Station
Inside the Lorry Station

030 251 9821/3
026 300 3379
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Nkawkaw

Zongo Junction

034 312 2266

Old Araba Afram Building
Official Town - Opposite Bone Ben Building
Opposite Annor’s Hotel

026 300 8304
026 300 2997
026 300 3593
026 300 3163

Dwinase, Adjacent Cocobod

030 393 5607

Jimmy Green Junction

030 393 5606

Somanya
Suame
Sunyani
Swedru

Jimmy Green Junction
Maakro Goil Filling Station
Near Ebenezer Methodist Church
Next to Ahmadiyya Muslim Hospital

030 393 5606
026 300 3029/30
035 202 3708/28
050 145 2990

Takoradi

Market Circle, Old Glamour Building
Next to Tamale Teaching Hospital
Opposite Techiman Community Centre
Opposite TDC
Behind the Police Station
Opposite Shell Filling Station

031 202 8530
031 202 8960
037 202 8665
035 209 1186/9
030 707 9350
026 300 3207
031 701 0198/9

Next to Pony Filling Station

057 229 0811

Obuasi
Odorkor
Offinso
Sefwi
Wiawso

Tamale
Techiman
Tema
Tema New Town
Teshie Nungua
Wenchi
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